

# 2025

# Sacred Heart University Department of Public Safety & Emergency Management Annual Campus Crime & Fire Safety Report

The Jeanne Clery Disclosure Report



**Mission Statement** 

"Vigilant, Prepared & Responsive"

Update/Compliance Date: October 1, 2025

# Table of Contents

Public Safety Command Staff	4
The History of Sacred Heart University	5
Equal Employment Opportunity Policy	5
Campus Policing & Security Policies	6
Public Safety Authority & Interagency Relationships	6
Annual Crime Report	7
Mission Statement	8
Reporting Criminal Incidents and Other Emergencies	8
Student Responsibility	8
Crime Reporting	9
Access to Campus Facilities	10
Student Residential Facilities	10
Emergency Medical Services	10
Title IX Introduction Grievance Policy	11
Introduction	11
Scope of Policy	12
USDOE Statement of Equitable Treatment	13
Formal Grievance Procedure	14
Formal Complaint	14
Mandatory Dismissal (106.45(b)(3)(i, iii)	15
Emergency Removal	16
Notice of Allegations (106.45(b)(2)	17
Investigation Procedure	17
Evidentiary Considerations	18
Investigative Report (106.45(b)(5)(vi-vii).)	19
Permissive Dismissal	20
Adjudication By Hearing	20
iv. Information Submission Permissive	21
v. Evidence	22
i. Cross-examination	22

	vii. Determination Regarding Responsibility	.23
	viii. Supportive Measures	.23
	ix. Range of Sanctions and Remedies (106.45(b)(1)(vi))	.23
	x. Finality Permissive	.24
	Appeals	.24
	iii. Upon receipt of an appeal, SHU will	.25
	Informal Resolution	.25
	Retaliation (34 C.F.R. § 106.71.)	.26
	Alcohol and Other Drug Policy Statement	.27
P	ublic Safety Responsibilities & Programs	. 32
	Fire Safety & Prevention	.32
	Crime Prevention & Security Awareness	.32
F.	B.I. Definitions of Reportable Crimes	. 36
	Criminal Homicide	.37
	Sex Offenses	.37
	Other Offenses	.37
	Hate Crimes 34 CFR 668.46 (b)(1) and 34 CFR 668.46 (c)(3)	.38
	Other Offenses	.39
	Anti-Discrimination and Discriminatory Harassment Policy	.39
C	ampus Security Authorities	. 40
	Referred for Campus Discipline	.40
	SHU Emergency Management	.40
	Executive — Emergency Management Policy Group (EMPG)	.41
	Managerial — Emergency Planning Team (EPT)	
		.41
Εı	mergency Response & Evacuation Procedures	
Εı	Policy	. 42
Eı		. 42 <b>.42</b>
Eı	Policy	. 42 . <b>42</b> . <b>42</b>
Eı	Policy  Procedures	.42 .42 .42
Eı	Policy  Procedures  Timely Warning Policy	.42 .42 .42 .43
Eı	Policy  Procedures  Timely Warning Policy  General Operational Procedure	.42 .42 .43 .44

Griswold Location at Griswold High School	56
SHU Dingle Campus	61
Campus Fire Safety Procedure & Reporting	67
2022 Residential Hall Fires	68
2023 Residential Hall Fires	68
2024 Residential Hall Fires	68
2022 Residential Fire Drills Conducted	68
2023 Residential Fire Drills Conducted	72
2024 Residential Fire Drills Conducted	74
Fire Protection Equipment in Residential Halls	78
Fire Safety Training	81
Fire Extinguishers	82
Fire Watch Procedure (Alarm failure or interruption of water flow	w to facilities)82
Fire Alarm Activation & Evacuation Procedures	82
Residence Life Fire Safety Regulations	83
Fire Safety & Guidelines- What to do! If There Is a Fire	85
Fire Safety Compliance	86
mnortant University Public Safety Phone Numbers	86

# **Public Safety Command Staff**

The Department of Public Safety is entrusted with fostering and maintaining a safe and secure environment for the University Community to pursue academic, professional, and personal ambitions. Dedicated to supporting the University's educational mission, we value experiential learning and emphasize conflict resolution in all our interactions with students. Committed to serving with professional excellence, we strive to be approachable, reliable, and truly service-oriented in the performance of our duties. The department maintains strong, professional relationships with municipal police, fire, and health personnel to ensure continuous collaboration on emergency planning efforts and familiarity with our campus in the event of an emergency.

#### **Gary MacNamara**

Chief/Executive Director of Public Safety and Government Affairs 203-396-6875

macnamarag4@sacredheart.edu

#### **Jack Fernandez**

Director 203-371-7996

fernandezj@sacredheart.edu

#### **Michael Gagner**

Director 203-396-8322

mgagner@sacredheart.edu

#### **Edward Greene**

Director 203-371-7990

greenee@sacredheart.edu

#### **Peter Bravo**

Supervisor of Investigations & Safety Programs 203-396-8212 bravop@sacredheart.edu

#### **Patrick Sasser**

Fire Safety Coordinator 203--396-8211 sasserp@sacredheart.edu

# The History of Sacred Heart University

Sacred Heart University was founded in 1963 by the Most Rev. Walter W. Curtis, second bishop of the Diocese of Bridgeport, to provide an institution of higher education that would serve the people of the diocese and region, regardless of sex, race, creed or religion. In October 1962, Bishop Curtis announced both the plan to open a college the following September, and its name, "Sacred Heart." The choice of the name had a dual origin: it was the name of the bishop's first pastorate in Bloomfield, NJ, and was a pledge from the bishop attesting to the value of such an institution.

Signs of the University's growth and vibrancy are evident. Enrollment has risen from the original class of fewer than 200 undergraduate students to over 11,000 full-time and part-time undergraduate, graduate and doctoral students. Over the years, Sacred Heart has grown to become the second-largest Catholic university in New England and, according to the *Chronicle of Higher Education*, one of the fastest-growing private doctoral institutions in the country.

The University has enhanced the undergraduate student experience in many notable ways. In 1990, it accepted, for the first time, students who wanted the residential experience. There are now 15 <u>residential areas</u> on or close to campus that feature housing options ranging from residence halls to suite and apartment-style living. About 91% of first-year students and 50% of all undergraduates reside

in University housing. <u>Pioneer Village</u>, located in SHU's Upper Quad, is home to eight of the University's residence halls, as well as student dining options, such as <u>Thea's Abbey</u> and <u>JP's Diner</u>.

New degree programs and majors in relevant disciplines are regularly added to SHU's curriculum, and the University now offers more than 200 undergraduate, graduate, doctoral and certificate programs on its campus in Fairfield, CT, and satellite campus in Dingle, Ireland. The University consists of five colleges and four schools: <a href="Molege of Arts & Sciences">College of Arts & Sciences</a>, the AACSB-accredited <a href="Jack Welch College of Business & Technology">Jack Welch College of Business & Technology</a>, <a href="College of Health Professions">College of Health Professions</a>, <a href="Davis & Henley College of Nursing">Davis & Henley College of Nursing</a>, <a href="Isabelle Farrington">Isabelle Farrington</a></a>
<a href="College of Education & Human Development">College of Education & Human Development</a>, <a href="School of Communication">School of Communication</a>, <a href="Medication & Health Professions">Media & the Arts</a>, <a href="School of Communication">School of Communication</a>, <a href="Medication & Health Professions">Media & the Arts</a>, <a href="School of Communication">School of Communication</a>, <a href="Medication & Health Professions">Media & the Arts</a>, <a href="School of Communication">School of Communication</a>, <a href="Medication & Health Professions">Media & the Arts</a>, <a href="School of Communication">School of Communication</a>, <a href="Medication & Health Professions">Media & the Arts</a>, <a href="School of Communication">School of Communication</a>, <a href="Medication & Health Professions">Media & the Arts</a>, <a href="School of Communication">School of Communication</a>, <a href="Medication & Health Professions">Media & the Arts</a>, <a href="School of Communication">School of Communication</a>, <a href="Medication & Health Professions">Media & the Arts</a>, <a href="School of Communication">School of Communication</a>, <a href="Medication & Health Professions">Media & Health Professions</a>, <a href="Medication & Health Professions">Media & Health

# **Equal Employment Opportunity Policy**

It is the policy of Sacred Heart University to comply with the law regarding equal opportunity for all qualified persons so as to prohibit unlawful discrimination against anyone because of race, gender, sexual orientation, pregnancy, color, marital status, veteran status, religion, age, disability or handicap, and national origin or ancestry in its employment policies and its education and admissions programs. Sacred Heart University promotes the full realization of equal opportunity throughout the University. Admissions and employment practices and activities are conducted on a non-discriminatory basis as required by law. This policy also is supplemented with a strong commitment to policy against harassment or retaliation of any kind.

While Sacred Heart University is committed to complying with applicable federal and state statutes, the pursuit of diversity and fairness is, more importantly, grounded in its mission and educational goals. This Affirmative Action Plan is a means for Sacred Heart University to implement its Equal Opportunity Policy.

# Campus Policing & Security Policies

# Public Safety Authority & Interagency Relationships

The SHU Department of Public Safety is a non-sworn, proprietary organization acting as the designated campus entity to handle all security and public safety functions under the direction of senior university officials. Although Public Safety Officers do not have law enforcement authority to make arrests, the Department of Public Safety enjoys a cooperative working relationship with the local police, state police, fire and medical first-responder agencies. Upon request, the Department of Public Safety will assist people with reporting criminal complaints to the local police for investigation. In addition to our Park Avenue Campus in Fairfield, Sacred Heart University owns and/or leases property in other cities and towns, including Bridgeport, Fairfield, Griswold, and Stamford Connecticut.

Public Safety Officers, as University officials on private property, possess the authority to question, seek photo identification from and detain or deny access to any unauthorized person on campus and at off-site, University-leased facilities. Sacred Heart's Department of Public Safety uses card-access systems and video surveillance to monitor campus buildings and property.

The Department of Public Safety is in the lower level of the WSHU Broadcast Center and can be reached at 203-371-7995; or for emergencies at 203-371-7911. (On campus, dial the last 4 digits—7995, or 7911 for emergencies). We encourage students, faculty, and staff to program our numbers in their cell phones and report all crimes properly to Public Safety or municipal police departments. The department is open 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. Officers are on duty at all times.

The Public Safety Dispatch Center is staffed by either a dispatcher or an officer who answers calls for service, assigns officers to incidents or calls for service and monitors security cameras, fire and other alarm systems. Officers patrol the campus and nearby University properties on foot, in vehicles, and on bicycles.

Most off-campus properties or residential halls are staffed by Public Safety Officers, but are supplemented by contract security officers when necessary. The department also has several administrative staff members who assist as needed.

The Department is responsible for access-key control and issuance, including residential access. It employs a locksmith as part of its team to handle access control and key issues.

All Public Safety Officers are trained and certified in FEMA emergency procedures, including the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and Incident Command System ICS), as are all our municipal emergency services partners for police, fire, and health services. New officers attend a public/campus Safety academy for in-depth training, which covers the procedural and operational aspects of their job.

The Department of Public Safety reports to the University Secretary and General Counsel, who in turn reports to the University president.

The Campus Security Act of 1990, also known as the Clery Act, requires universities to:

- Publish an annual report every year by October 1 that contains three years of campus crime statistics and certain security policy statements.
- Disclose crime statistics for the campus, public areas immediately adjacent to (or running through) the campus, and non-campus facilities. The statistics must be gathered from the Department of Public Safety, local law enforcement and other University officials who have "significant responsibility for student and campus activities."
- Provide timely warning notices of crimes or incidents that have occurred and pose an on-going threat to students, faculty, and staff.
- Disclose in a public crime log "any crime that occurred on campus... or within the patrol
  jurisdiction of the campus police or campus security department and is reported to the campus
  police or security department." The crime log does not contain any personally identifying
  information.

# **Annual Crime Report**

The SHU Department of Public Safety is responsible for compiling the information contained within and distributing this report. The report is distributed to the university community by

email announcement prior to October 1<sup>st</sup> annually. Copies of the Annual Campus Crime and Fire Safety Report are available from the University website, or a written copy can be obtained at the Public Safety Dispatch Office. The daily crime log is maintained and available for review at the Public Safety Dispatch Office upon request.

The department works with the various University departments under the dean of students and outside municipal law enforcement agencies to compile this information.

Copies of the report are available for prospective students at the beginning of each academic year and University employees from the Public Safety Dispatch Office. An email notification is sent to all employees informing them of the report's availability. Public Safety submits all crime and fire statistics to the U.S. Department of Education annually.

#### Mission Statement

Keep SHU Safe!

# **Reporting Criminal Incidents and Other Emergencies**

The department is the primary response agency for all crimes and incidents on campus, providing emergency assistance, investigating and documenting incidents, and is the liaison with local police, fire and medical first responder agencies.

Members of the Sacred Heart University community are strongly encouraged to immediately report crimes, suspicious activities or other emergencies to the Sacred Heart University Department of Public Safety. This provides immediate and professional assistance to victims, and also provides Public Safety and the University with an accurate statistical count of crimes. When requested, the Department of Public Safety will assist victims with reporting crimes to the local police.

# Student Responsibility

The cooperation, involvement, and support of all students in taking an active role in crime prevention are crucial. Students must assume responsibility for their own personal safety and the security of their personal belongings by taking simple, common-sense precautions.

Precautions include always locking residential room doors; not propping open either the room or the exterior building doors; not allowing anyone you do not know into your residential hall and engraving items of value with a personal identifying number or mark. Also, always locking motor vehicles and placing items of value out of sight, locking bicycles with sturdy locks, using the campus personal safety escort service and reporting any suspicious activity immediately to the Department of Public Safety.

All students, employees and visitors should report criminal activities to the Department of Public Safety by calling 203-371-7911. Individuals may also report incidents in person to the Public Safety Office in the

lower level of the WSHU Broadcast Center. **Emergency blue light call boxes** have been installed throughout campus and can be used to contact the department for emergencies or requests for service. Pressing the red button on the call boxes will allow users to communicate directly with the dispatcher and all officers. The call box will first announce the location of the call before the initial transmission.

# **Crime Reporting**

Numerous efforts are made to inform members of the campus community about campus crime and crime related issues and concerns on a timely basis. These efforts include:

#### **Annual Report**

This Safety and Security Annual Report contains comprehensive information on crime reporting and safety on campus, as well as crime statistics. On or before October 1 of each year, a global email is sent notifying all students and employees that the Annual Report is available online. The email notice also advises that a written copy of the report is available upon request at the Department of Public Safety Dispatch Center on the lower level of the WSHU Broadcast Center. Sacred Heart has a voluntary system under the Silent Witness Program and through the Wellness Center for people to report criminal activities that, after investigation and/or analysis, will be included in the annual crime statistics.

# **Public Safety Alerts**

When circumstances warrant, special printed Public Safety Alerts (or Timely Warnings) are prepared and distributed throughout the campus. The warning will be issued via the Sacred Heart University email system to students, faculty, and staff. Alerts will also be posted in campus buildings and residential halls as may be desirable.

# Campus-Wide Electronic Mail

Email is used to inform community members of Public Safety Alerts or other issues or concerns.

#### Residential Life

The Department of Public Safety regularly communicates with members of the Residential Life staff, who are in communication with all resident students.

# Public Log

The Department of Public Safety maintains a chronological record of reported Clery crimes and criminal incidents at the Dispatch Center, and it is available for viewing at any time.

# **Access to Campus Facilities**

Most campus buildings and facilities, other than student residential halls, are accessible to members of the campus community, their guests and visitors during normal hours of business, and during designated hours on weekends and holidays, depending on the events and activities taking place outside the normal business hours. (Classes commence at 8 a.m. and conclude at 10:10 p.m. weekdays. Event publications will list hours and location for special activities.)

#### Student Residential Facilities

Sacred Heart University houses approximately 3,500 students in various accommodations, including dormitories, suites, apartments and townhouses. Exterior doors to student residence halls and apartment buildings remain locked 24 hours a day. Access to residential facilities and/or interior rooms is controlled by an electronic key access system, a traditional hard key lock, or combination of both. (Refer to the Student Handbook for specific times and administrative procedures, or ask your Resident Hall Director for updated information.) The Student Handbook defines the policies concerning visitors' identification and admission.

Under the Dean of Students, Residential Life employees conduct training with students concerning housing security and enforcement procedures. <u>View the Student Handbook.</u>

Sacred Heart's Public Safety Officers or contract security officers conduct regular safety and security checks of all residence halls. Residential Life representatives are additionally on duty to assist students at all residence halls.

Guests and visitors in residence halls must be sponsored prior to entry and accompanied by that sponsor whenever in the residence hall. Visitors are the responsibility of their sponsor and must follow University rules governing their stay (including visitation hours) and show photo identification to the on-duty security officer (or public safety officer) upon request.

Residence halls are equipped with intrusion alarms on the exterior doors. When any of these fire doors are used, a local alarm will sound until a Public Safety Officer resets it. The assistance of all students in not propping secure doors or letting strangers into the residential facilities is very important.

A Resident Hall Director and student Resident Success Assistants live in each residential facility and are available to assist students. Sacred Heart University does not have any off-campus student organizations recognized by the University.

# **Emergency Medical Services**

The Department of Public Safety is certified by the State of Connecticut Office of Emergency Medical Services as a Supplemental First Responder agency. As a Supplemental First Responder agency, Public Safety Officers respond to medical emergencies and provide medical treatment until the local First Responders arrive on scene. As such, many Public Safety Officers are licensed as Emergency Medical

Responders (EMR) at a minimum, while several are certified as Emergency Medical Technicians (EMT). Public Safety patrol vehicles are equipped with the State of Connecticut required First Responder equipment, including oxygen. All Public Safety Officers are certified in Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) and Automatic External Defibrillators (AED) are distributed to Patrol Officers to be kept in their vehicles while on shift. In addition, there are 22 other AED's in various locations throughout the Park Avenue Campus and West Campus that are maintained by Public Safety. Public Safety Officers are trained in the use of NARCAN and every Public Safety Officer carries NARCAN while on duty.

The Athletic Training Department also has several AEDs at the William Pitt Center for use there. They are maintained by the Athletic Training department. Maureen Hamilton Health Wellness Center maintains one AED in the building.

# Title IX Introduction Grievance Policy Introduction

This Policy is intended to define, address and remedy sexual harassment via a defined process required by the U.S. Department of Education (USDOE) under new Title IX Regulations, effective August 14, 2020. This Policy applies to all members of the SHU community, including students, faculty and staff. The scope of this Policy is set forth in Section II, below. This Policy contains citations to the applicable Title IX Regulations throughout. See 34 C.F.R. Part 106.

SHU prohibits sexual harassment by faculty, staff, students and those who use SHU facilities. The prohibition applies regardless of the gender of the individuals involved and includes sexual relationships involving a status differential and those between peers, colleagues, and co-workers.

The terms of this Policy supersede any contrary school policies pertaining to the investigation or adjudication of sexual harassment, as defined herein.

This Formal Grievance Policy proceeds in four additional sections.

**Section II defines** the scope of this Formal Grievance Policy. Under the new Title IX Regulations, sexual harassment must be investigated and adjudicated under the procedures set forth in this policy.

**Section III** contains the U.S. Department of Education's statements regarding equitable treatment under the Title IX Regulations. The concepts of equitable treatment include the provision of supportive measures and waiting until the grievance process concludes to make conclusions.

**Section IV** contains SHU's Formal Grievance Process, as required by the Regulations. This section contains information on filing a Formal Complaint of sexual harassment, the investigation process, the role of the Title IX Coordinator, Title IX's live hearing requirements, the appeals process, and other topics. Students, faculty, and staff should consult this section to learn about the process SHU will use to investigate and adjudicate allegations of sexual harassment. **Section V** explains that SHU will not retaliate against any person for that person's involvement in the Title IX process.

SHU has designated Title IX Coordinators to oversee the investigation and resolution of reports of sexual harassment and SHU's compliance with Title IX. Any questions about this policy, SHU's processes under Title IX, or reports of alleged sexual harassment should be directed to the Office of Title IX:

#### **Beth Anne Voight-Jause**

Executive Director of Community Standards /Title IX Coordinator HC 117 203-416-4320 voight-jauseb@sacredheart.edu

#### **Roland Galvez**

Deputy Title HC 118 203- 416-3152

galvezr@sacredheart.edu

For employees, contact Freda Grant, Director of Institutional Equity Compliance & Support and Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Employees at <a href="mailto:grantf2@sacredheart.edu">grantf2@sacredheart.edu</a> or 203-396-8067.

The Office of Title IX, in conjunction with Human Resources (for faculty and staff matters), will oversee all matters relating to sexual harassment on campus, including distribution of policies, educational programs, investigations, policy enforcement, and follow-up with complainants and respondents in investigations. Any questions regarding this Formal Grievance Policy or Title IX generally may be directed to the Title IX Coordinator.

This Title IX Sexual Harassment Policy will apply to "sexual harassment" in a SHU "education program or activity" against a person in the United States, per USDOE Regulations, effective August 14, 2020. 34 C.F.R. § 106.44(a).

# Scope of Policy

#### **Definitional Requirement**

"Sexual harassment" is defined in the Regulations (§ 106.30) to be conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the following:

- i. SHU employee conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or service on an individual's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct ("quid pro quo");
- ii. Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to SHU's education program or activity; or iii. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking. (These terms are defined in the Definitions section on our website).

#### Jurisdictional Requirement

An "education program or activity" includes locations, events, or circumstances over which SHU exercises substantial control over both the respondent and the context in which the sexual harassment occurs, and also includes any building owned or controlled by a student organization that is officially

recognized by SHU. USDOE's Regulations exclude any "education program or activity" that does not occur in the United States. (§ 106.44(a).

If alleged sexual misconduct does not satisfy the USDOE's definitional or jurisdictional requirements, such as off-campus sexual misconduct alleged to have an on-campus effect, then SHU has discretion to address it outside of this Policy through the Student Code of Conduct.

#### Other Definitions

The terms "Complainant" and "Respondent" are used throughout this Policy. A Complainant is an individual who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sexual harassment. A Respondent is an individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct that could constitute sexual harassment. (§ 106.30.)

Other terms used within this Policy, like "Supportive Measures" and "Formal Complaint," are defined below. All relevant terms, including Consent and Incapacitation, are defined in the IX Coordinator

# **USDOE Statement of Equitable Treatment**

As required by USDOE's Regulations, SHU's Title IX Sexual Harassment Policy will "treat complainants and respondents equitably by [1] offering supportive measures ... to a complainant, and [2] by following a grievance process that complies with [the Title IX Regulations] before the imposition of any disciplinary sanctions or other actions that are not supportive measures ... against a respondent." (106.44(a); 106.45(b)(1)(i).) This Policy explains the new Title IX Regulations' requirements.

A. The Title IX Regulations define "supportive measures" as "non-disciplinary, non-punitive individualized services offered as appropriate, as reasonably available, and without fee or charge to the complainant or the respondent." They may be sought or provided before or after the filing of a Formal Complaint, or where no Formal Complaint has been filed. "Such measures are designed to restore or preserve equal

access to the [school's] education program or activity without unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures designed to protect the safety of all parties or the [school's] educational environment, or deter sexual harassment.

"Supportive measures may be offered as needed to respondents and other members of the SHU community who may be affected by sexual misconduct. Supportive measures may include: counseling, extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments, modifications of work or class schedules, campus escort services, mutual restrictions on contact between the parties, changes in work or housing locations, leaves of absence, increased security and monitoring of certain areas of the campus, and other similar measures. SHU will keep any supportive measures provided to the complainant or respondent confidential, to the extent possible. However, supportive measures that impact other members of the SHU community (e.g. mutual no-contact orders, where the other party must be made aware of the order and its implications), may be disclosed in order to enforce them. The Title IX Coordinator is responsible for coordinating the effective implementation of supportive measures.

B. An individual's status as a respondent will not be considered a negative factor during consideration of the grievance. Respondents are entitled to, and will receive the benefit of, a presumption that they are not responsible for the alleged conduct unless and until the grievance process concludes and a determination regarding responsibility is issued. Similarly, credibility determinations will not be based on a person's status as a complainant, respondent, or witness. (106.45(b)(1)(ii-iv).)

C. SHU's Title IX Sexual Harassment Policy will provide remedies to a complainant only if the grievance process described in this Policy results in a determination that the respondent is responsible for sexual harassment. Remedies are designed to restore or preserve equal access to the school's education program or activity, and they may include the same individualized services as supportive measures. Remedies may be disciplinary and punitive. (106.45(b)(1)(i).)

D. Title IX Coordinators, investigators, decision-makers, and any person who facilitates an informal resolution process (Title IX administrators) will not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or an individual complainant or respondent in the grievance process. SHU will provide necessary and appropriate training to each administrator involved in the Title IX process. Training materials will not rely on sex stereotypes and will promote impartial investigations and adjudications of Formal Complaints of sexual harassment. (106.45(b)(1)(iii).)

#### Formal Grievance Procedure

This portion of the Policy outlines the steps taken to initiate the Formal Grievance Procedure, as well as USDOE's procedural requirements for investigation and adjudication of Formal Complaints.

# **Formal Complaint**

The submission of a Formal Complaint triggers the Formal Grievance process described herein when received by the Title IX Coordinator. (These terms are defined in the Definitions section.) The Title IX Regulations define a Formal Complaint as "a document filed by a complainant or signed by the Title IX Coordinator alleging sexual harassment [as defined by the Title IX Regulations] against a respondent and requesting that [SHU] investigate the allegation of sexual harassment."

- i. At the time of filing a Formal Complaint, "a complainant must be participating in or attempting to participate in the education program or activity."
- ii. A Formal Complaint must be in writing and may be filed with the Title IX Coordinator in person, by mail, or by email.
- iii. The Formal Complaint must contain the complainant's physical or digital signature, or some other indication that the complainant is the person filing it. (106.30.)

iv. If SHU receives an allegation of sexual misconduct that falls within the Title IX Sexual Harassment Policy scope (it meets both the Title IX Regulations' jurisdictional requirements and definition of "sexual harassment" (see Section II)) but no Formal Complaint is filed, then the new Title IX Regulations prevent SHU from administering a formal grievance process that may permit "the imposition of any disciplinary

sanctions or other actions ... against a respondent." Supportive measures, however, may still be given. According to USDOE, the purpose of the Formal Complaint is to clarify that the complainant (or the Title IX Coordinator) believes that the school should investigate the allegations of sexual harassment against the respondent. 34 C.F.R. § 106.44(a); 34 C.F.R. § 106.45(b)(1)(i); see also 34 C.F.R. § 106.8(c).

Accordingly, SHU strongly encourages complainants to file Formal Complaints, so that the required Formal Grievance Process described in this Policy can be initiated. If the alleged conduct meets the Regulations' definitional and jurisdictional requirements, the law now requires a Formal Complaint before SHU can pursue a full investigation or explore the possibility of an informal or early resolution, which occur before holding a disciplinary hearing or issuing sanctions.

v. After filing a Formal Complaint, a complainant may withdraw their Formal Complaint at any time by providing written notice to the Title IX Coordinator. That withdrawal will result in dismissal of the Formal Grievance Process unless the Title IX Coordinator takes action under subsection IV.i.g immediately below. (See also Subsection D.v. below re permissive dismissal.)

vi. A Title IX Coordinator may sign a Formal Complaint to initiate or continue the Formal Grievance Process described herein, if necessary to fulfill the school's duties under Title IX to not be deliberately indifferent to actual knowledge of sexual misconduct.

Signing a Formal Complaint does not make a Title IX Coordinator a complainant or otherwise a party. (106.30.)

vii. Alleged violations of the student or employee Code of Conduct or other policies that arise from the same events as the alleged sexual harassment will be investigated and resolved under the grievance procedures in this Policy.

viii. SHU may, but is not required to, consolidate Formal Complaints arising out of the same factual circumstances in two scenarios:

a. Where there is more than one complainant or respondent;

b. Where a complaint has also been filed by the respondent against the complainant. (106.45(b)(4).) In such cases, the Formal Grievance Process for a later-filed complaint may be consolidated into an earlier-filed process rather than re-start from the beginning (e.g., the new charges may be considered in the course of a pre-existing investigation).

# Mandatory Dismissal (106.45(b)(3)(i, iii).

If a Formal Complaint is filed, SHU will investigate its allegations. If the conduct alleged does not meet the scope requirements in Section II for "sexual harassment" as defined by USDOE, SHU must dismiss the Formal Complaint under this Policy. In such circumstances, SHU will promptly and simultaneously send written notice to each party of the dismissal of the Formal Complaint and the reasoning.

Title IX Coordinator Initial Responsibilities

- i. Upon receipt of any report of alleged sexual misconduct, the Title IX Coordinator will promptly contact the complainant to discuss the availability of supportive measures and explain the process involved in filing a Formal Complaint. The Title IX Coordinator will inform the complainant of the availability of supportive measures with or without the filing of a Formal Complaint and will consider the complainant's wishes with respect to supportive measures. (106.44(a).)
- ii. Supportive measures will be assessed and may be offered as needed to complainants, respondents and other members of the SHU community who may have been affected by the allegations at issue. See Section III.B. regarding supportive measures.
- iii. The Title IX Coordinator may conduct a limited, threshold investigation:
- a. to determine if the scope requirements in Section II for §106.30 "sexual harassment" have been met; if the Complainant does not file a Formal Complaint, to determine whether the school's Title IX obligations require a Title IX Coordinator to "sign" a Formal Complaint; and
- b. for other limited purposes; provided that if a Formal Complaint is filed or signed, the Title IX Coordinator will fulfill the terms of this Formal Grievance Process, including the notice provisions immediately below and the more thorough investigation process described below even if it is somewhat duplicative of the threshold investigation.
- c. If the respondent is a current employee, a Title IX Designee for HR matters may conduct or participate in the threshold investigation.

# **Emergency Removal**

At any time after the Title IX Coordinator is on notice of sexual harassment, Sacred Heart University may remove a Respondent on an emergency basis. Sacred Heart University will only conduct an emergency removal after undertaking an individualized safety and risk analysis, and determining that an immediate threat to the physical health or safety of any student or other individual arising from the allegations of sexual harassment justifies removal. The respondent must receive notice and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following such a removal. (106.44(c).)

- i. To challenge an emergency removal, a respondent must submit such challenge in writing within two (2) business days to the Title IX Coordinator accompanied with information to explain their challenge. If a challenge to an emergency removal is received, Sacred Heart University will review the challenge and accompanying information, and the Title IX Coordinator will either respond within two (2) business days of receipt of the challenge with an outcome or request a meeting with the respondent. This meeting will be offered within 2 business days of the receipt of the challenge and may include other University representatives such as Public Safety. In this scenario, the Title IX Coordinator will respond with an outcome within two (2) business days of the meeting occurrence. This meeting is not required, and if the respondent declines to participate in the meeting, the University will render a decision without the meeting within two (2) business days of the decline.
- ii. Administrative Leave: The Title IX Coordinator, or a Title IX Designee for employee matters, may place a non-student employee respondent on administrative leave during the pendency of a Formal Grievance Process. (106.44(d).)

# Notice of Allegations (106.45(b)(2)

- i. Upon receipt of a Formal Complaint, SHU will provide written notice to known parties of the following:
- a. Notice of SHU's Formal Grievance Process by providing access to this policy.
- b. Notice of the allegations potentially constituting sexual harassment as defined in 106.30, including sufficient details known at the time. Sufficient details are defined in the Title IX Regulations to include:
- c. The identities of the parties involved in the incident, if known;
- d. The conduct allegedly constituting sexual harassment under 106.30; and
- e. The date and location of the alleged incident, if known.
- ii. Per the Title IX Regulations, the written notice must also include the following statements:
- a. The respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct.
- b. A determination regarding responsibility is made at the conclusion of the grievance process.
- c. The parties may have an advisor of their choice, who may be, but is not required to be, an attorney.
- d. The parties may inspect and review evidence.
- e. The parties are prohibited from knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting false information during the grievance process.
- i. The notice must be given as soon as practicable and with sufficient time to prepare a response before any initial investigation interview.
- ii. If, at any point during the course of the investigation, SHU decides to investigate allegations that are not included in the original notice, it will provide notice of the additional allegations to the parties.

# **Investigation Procedure**

The Title IX Coordinator will appoint an Investigator to investigate the allegations subject to the Formal Grievance Process. The investigation may include, among other steps, interviewing the complainant, the respondent, and any witnesses; reviewing law enforcement investigation documents if applicable; reviewing relevant student or employment files; and gathering and examining other relevant documents, social media and evidence.

- i. The Investigator will attempt to collect all relevant information and evidence. While the Investigator will have the burden of gathering evidence, it is crucial that the parties present evidence and identify witnesses to the Investigator so that they may be considered during the investigation. While all evidence presented at a hearing by the parties will be considered, the adjudicator(s) may, in its/their discretion, consider relevant evidence.
- ii. The investigation file should contain all information gathered during the investigation that is potentially relevant to the alleged misconduct; the Investigator should not filter or exclude evidence or decide the weight or credibility of evidence, unless the evidence is clearly irrelevant or not pertinent to the facts at issue.

iii. Following the investigation, the Investigator will draft an investigation report succinctly describing all collected information. The Investigator will not make any recommendation as to whether a Policy violation has occurred or potential sanctions.

# **Evidentiary Considerations**

While investigating the allegations of any Formal Complaint of sexual harassment, the Investigator will conduct an objective evaluation of all relevant evidence. Relevant evidence is any evidence that may tend to make the allegations at issue more or less likely to be true (both corroborating and "exculpatory" or contradicting evidence). (106.45(b)(1)(ii).)

#### i. Standard of evidence

- a. In assessing allegations of sexual harassment and conducting its Formal Grievance Process, SHU will use a preponderance of the evidence standard.(106.45(b)(1)(vii).) The "preponderance" standard means that the alleged sexual misconduct is "more likely than not" to have occurred. b. That standard will apply to all Formal Complaints of sexual harassment, regardless of whether the Formal Complaint is against a student or an employee or faculty member. (106.45(b)(1)(vii).)
- ii. As dictated by the Title IX Regulations at 34 C.F.R. § 106.45(b)(5), when investigating a Formal Complaint and throughout the grievance process, SHU will: a. Ensure that the burden of proof and the burden of gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination regarding responsibility rest on the school and not on the parties. (106.45(b)(5)(i).) This means that the school's decision-makers will use the preponderance standard.
- b. Provide an equal opportunity for the parties to present witnesses and other relevant evidence. (106.45(b)(5)(ii).)
- c. Not restrict the ability of either party to discuss the allegations under investigation or to gather and present relevant evidence. (106.45(b)(5)(iii).)
- i. That said, SHU expects the parties to respect the sensitive nature of allegations of sexual misconduct and to respect other parties' sense of confidentiality.
- ii. While SHU cannot prevent a party from discussing the allegations under investigation, the Title IX Regulations and this Policy prohibit retaliation against any person because they participate or refuse to participate in any part of the school's sexual misconduct processes. See Section V. below.
- iii. Consistent with FERPA's prohibition on re-disclosure of confidential information, any person who receives another person's confidential information solely as a result of participation in any investigation or proceeding under this Policy, is prohibited from using or disclosing such confidential information outside of such forums without express consent or for any improper purpose. This provision only applies to other people's confidential information, as a party is never restricted from discussing their own experience. This provision does not apply to any information learned outside of an investigation or proceeding under this Policy.
- d. Provide the parties with the same opportunities to have others present during any grievance proceeding, including the opportunity to be accompanied to any related meeting or proceeding by the

advisor of their choice. The advisor may be, but is not required to be, an attorney. SHU will not limit the choice or presence of an advisor for either the complainant or respondent in any meeting or grievance proceeding; however, SHU will restrict the extent to which the advisor may actively participate in the proceedings, which will apply equally to both parties' advisors. (106.45(b)(5)(iv).) SHU can provide an advisory to either party, if requested.

- i. Advisors are not permitted to directly participate in any proceeding, except as specified below related to hearings. Advisors may be present solely to advise or support the party and are prohibited from speaking directly to the investigator, adjudicators, other parties, or witnesses in such proceedings.
  e. Provide written notice to each party of the date, time, location, participants, and purposes of each Formal Grievance Process meeting at which they are invited to participate, with sufficient time for the party to prepare to participate.
- i. For all hearings, SHU will provide 10 days' notice;
- ii. For all non-hearing investigative interviews or meetings to which a party is invited or expected at SHU's discretion, SHU will provide 5 days' notice. (106.45(b)(5)(v).)
- f. Provide both parties an equal opportunity to inspect and review any evidence SHU obtained as part of the investigation, whether obtained from a party or other source that is directly related to the allegations raised in a Formal Complaint. The provision of such evidence is intended to help each party meaningfully respond to the evidence prior to conclusion of the investigation. (106.45(b)(5)(vi).) i. SHU will not access, consider, disclose, or otherwise use a party's records that are made or maintained by a physician, psychiatrist, psychologist, or other recognized professional or paraprofessional acting in the professional's or paraprofessional's capacity, or assisting in that capacity, and which are made and maintained in connection with the provision of treatment to the party, unless the party voluntarily consents in writing to their use in a Formal Grievance Process. (106.45(b)(5)(i).)

# Investigative Report (106.45(b)(5)(vi-vii).)

- i. Prior to completion of the investigative report, SHU will send to each party, and the party's advisor if any, the evidence subject to inspection and review.
- a. Such evidence also will be available at any hearing, to give each party equal opportunity to refer to such evidence during the hearing, including for purposes of cross-examination.
- b. SHU retains discretion to elect to send such materials in an electronic format or a hard copy. The provision of such evidence may include data security safeguards that prevent it from being downloaded, printed or forwarded. (See 85 Fed. Reg. at 30304.)
- ii. The parties will have 10 calendar days to submit a written response. The investigator will consider any such response prior to completion of the final investigative report.
- iii. The investigator will then create a final investigative report that fairly summarizes the relevant evidence. The final investigative report will not make any recommendation as to whether a policy violation has occurred or potential sanctions. At least 10 days prior to a hearing, SHU will send the final investigative report to each party, and the party's advisor if any, for their review and written response.

iv. Any such response must be received by the Title IX Coordinator within five days of when the final investigative report was delivered to the party, so that the party's response may be available for consideration by the adjudicator(s). If warranted, the investigator may choose to update the final investigative report to take a party's response into account, in which case the hearing date may be postponed.

#### Permissive Dismissal

- i. At any time during the investigation or hearing, SHU may dismiss the Formal Complaint or any of its allegations if:
- a. A complainant notifies the Title IX Coordinator in writing that he or she would like to withdraw the Formal Complaint or any allegation therein;
- b. The respondent is no longer enrolled or employed by the school; or
- c. Specific circumstances prevent SHU from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination as to the Formal Complaint or allegations therein. (106.45(b)(3)(ii).)
- ii. In all such circumstances, supportive measures may be continued.
- iii. Under the first circumstance, the Title IX Coordinator may choose in their discretion to sign the Formal Complaint to continue the Formal Grievance Process. See also Sections IV.A.iii-iv, above.
- a. Under the second circumstance:
- i. The respondent's student or employment records may be marked to indicate their departure during a disciplinary process (which may resume if they return to SHU), but will not indicate that such respondent was found or assumed responsible for any alleged misconduct pending at the time of departure.
- ii. The respondent may be required to notify the Title IX Coordinator if they intend to visit any building owned or controlled by SHU or a student organization that is officially recognized by SHU, or if they otherwise seek to attend any SHU education program or activity or event, so that the complainant may be given an opportunity to receive supportive measures if needed.
- iii. If permissive dismissal is granted under this section, the Formal Grievance Process will cease. Under the Title IX Regulations, effective August 14, 2020, no further investigation will occur, and no disciplinary sanctions or actions can be imposed against the respondent. See Section IV.A.ii. (citing 34 C.F.R. § 106.44(a); 34 C.F.R. § 106.45(b)(1)(i); 34 C.F.R. § 106.8(c).)
- iv. A permissive dismissal under this section differs from a mandatory dismissal under Section IV.A.vi. for alleged conduct that does not meet the Formal Grievance Policy scope requirements contained in section II for § 106.30 "sexual harassment."

# Adjudication By Hearing

SHU's Formal Grievance Process will culminate in a live hearing before one or more adjudicators, who will consider all evidence presented (subject to the terms below) and determine whether a respondent is responsible or not responsible for a violation of this Policy, based on the criteria of a preponderance of evidence. Under that standard, the burden of proof is met, and a respondent may be found responsible for a policy violation, if the adjudicator(s) determine that it is more likely than not that the respondent

committed the conduct alleged. Respondents are entitled to, and will receive the benefit of, a presumption that they are not responsible for the alleged conduct until the grievance process concludes and a determination regarding responsibility is issued. If the respondent is found responsible for a violation of this Policy, the respondent may be subjected to disciplinary action. (106.45(b)(6)(i).)

- i. The adjudicators will be selected by the Title IX Coordinator and may vary based on the enrollment or employment status of the respondent.
- a. Student-respondent cases typically will be adjudicated by a three-member panel of trained SHU faculty and/or staff. One of the three panel members will be designated as the chairperson. A separate adjudicator who is not a member of the three-member panel is also permitted to preside as a hearing officer and make evidentiary rulings at the hearing.
- b. Employee and Faculty-respondent cases typically will be adjudicated by the Executive Director for Human Resources.
- c. The adjudicators will not be the same person as the Title IX Coordinator or the Investigator.
- ii. At the request of either party, SHU will allow the live hearing to take place with the parties located in separate rooms. Technology must enable the adjudicator(s) and parties to simultaneously see and hear the party or witness answering questions. Live hearings may, then, be conducted with all parties physically present in the same location, or any or all parties, witnesses and other participants may appear at the live hearing virtually.
- iii. SHU will create a transcript or recording (audio or audiovisual) of any adjudicative hearing. It will be available to the parties for inspection and review in compliance with FERPA.

#### iv. Information Submission Permissive

- a. The Title IX Coordinator will identify the adjudicators to the parties five days in advance of the hearing. Either party may challenge a named adjudicator if believed to have a conflict of interest or bias. A challenge must be delivered in writing to the Title IX Coordinator at least two days in advance of the hearing, specifying the reasons for such belief. The Title IX Coordinator has sole discretion to keep or replace the challenged adjudicator, and if replaced, will postpone the hearing to allow for a replacement adjudicator.
- b. Five days in advance of the hearing, the parties will identify their expected attendees (including any advisor) and their expected witnesses (including themselves), including the witnesses' expected sequence, via writing to the Title IX Coordinator, who will supply the disclosure to the other party so that they can be prepared. The parties will not be strictly bound to their disclosures, but they should be submitted in good faith. c. Typically, the parties will be in charge of choosing and supplying their own witnesses at the hearing. When necessary for the pursuit of truth and to gather evidence sufficient to reach a determination, the adjudicators will have discretion to ask the Title IX Coordinator to request additional witnesses after receipt of the parties' witness lists; recognizing, however, that the school has no ability to compel any witness to attend. Any such requested witness will be disclosed to the parties.

#### v. Evidence

- a. At the hearing, all relevant evidence will be objectively evaluated. Relevant evidence is any evidence that may tend to make the allegations at issue more or less likely to be true (corroborating and exculpatory or contradicting evidence). Credibility determinations will not be based on a person's status as a complainant, respondent, or witness. (106.45(b)(1)(ii).)
- b. Relevant evidence presented at a hearing by the parties will be considered.
- c. The Title IX Regulations state that questions and evidence about the complainant's sexual predisposition or prior sexual behavior are not relevant, unless: i. "offered to prove that someone other than the respondent committed the conduct alleged" or ii. "if the questions and evidence concern specific incidents of the complainant's prior sexual behavior with respect to the respondent and are offered to prove consent." (34 C.F.R. § 106.45(b)(6)(i).)

#### i. Cross-examination

- a. As stated above, each party may be accompanied to the hearing by the advisor of their choice. The advisor may be, but is not required to be, an attorney. Advisors may be present solely to advise or support the party and are prohibited from speaking directly to the investigator, adjudicators, other parties, or witnesses during the hearing, except for conducting cross examination.
- b. If a party does not have an advisor present at the live hearing, SHU will provide without fee or charge to that party, an advisor who may be, but is not required to be, an attorney, to conduct cross-examination on behalf of that party. (106.45(b)(6)(i).)
- i. If a party does not have an advisor for the hearing, the party must notify the Title IX Coordinator no later than the party's pre-hearing disclosures. (See Section IV. E. ii. 2., above.) Otherwise, the hearing may be delayed, and the appointed advisor may have less time to prepare for the hearing.
- ii. Process for appointing advisor: pool of trained advisors to the party for them to choose.
- c. At the hearing, each party's advisor is permitted to ask the other party and any witnesses all relevant questions and follow-up questions, including those challenging credibility. Such cross examination at the live hearing must be conducted directly, orally, and in real time by the party's advisor of choice, and never by a party personally. (106.45(b)(6)(i).) However, the adjudicator(s) will typically ask questions before either advisor.
- d. Only relevant cross-examination and other questions may be asked of a party or witness.. Before a party or witness answers a cross-examination or other question, the adjudicator must first determine whether the question is relevant and explain any decision to exclude a question as not relevant. (106.45(b)(6)(i).)
- e. If a party or witness does not submit to cross-examination at the live hearing, the adjudicator(s) must not rely on any statement of that party or witness in reaching a determination regarding responsibility. However, the adjudicator(s) cannot draw an inference about the determination regarding responsibility

based solely on a party's or witness's absence from the live hearing or refusal to answer cross-examination or other questions. (106.45(b)(6)(i).)

#### vii. Determination Regarding Responsibility

- a. The adjudicator(s) will issue a written determination following the hearing.

  Based on the preponderance of the evidence, the adjudicator(s) will decide if the respondent is responsible for engaging in the conduct alleged, and if so, what disciplinary action may be appropriate.

  b. The written determination will include:
- i. Identification of the allegations potentially constituting sexual harassment as defined in 106.30;
- ii. A description of the procedural steps taken from the receipt of the Formal Complaint through the determination, including any notifications to the parties, interviews with parties and witnesses, site visits, methods used to gather evidence, and hearings held;
- iii. Findings of fact supporting the determination;
- iv. Conclusions regarding the application of this Policy to the facts;
- v. A statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each allegation, including:
- 1. A determination regarding responsibility;
- 2. Any disciplinary sanctions the adjudicator(s) imposes on the respondent; and
- 3. Whether remedies designed to restore or preserve equal access to SHU's education program or activity will be provided to the complainant; and
- vi. Procedures and permissible bases for the parties to appeal the determination. (106.45(b)(7)(ii).)
- c. The written determination will be provided to the parties simultaneously.

# viii. Supportive Measures

Supportive measures also may be provided to the complainant that are designed to restore or preserve equal access to SHU's education program or activity, even if they are not listed in the written determination. Remedies and supportive measures that do not impact the respondent should not be disclosed in the written determination; rather, the determination should simply indicate that "remedies will be provided to the complainant." 85 Fed. Reg. at 30425. The Title IX Coordinator is responsible for effective implementation of any remedies and supportive measures. (106.45(b)(7)(iv).)

# ix. Range of Sanctions and Remedies (106.45(b)(1)(vi))

- a. The following sanctions against a student who has been found responsible for violating the Formal Grievance Policy will vary depending on the severity of the violation. Information regarding the definition(s) of specific sanctions is located in the Student Code of Conduct and Community Standards. Each sanction has been formally defined in the Student Code of Conduct.
- i. Sexual Harassment Violations: Any student found responsible for violating the Formal Grievance Policy will likely receive a sanction ranging from warning to expulsion depending on the severity of the incident, and taking into account any previous disciplinary violations.
- ii. Sexual assault/misconduct Violations: Any student found responsible for violating the policy by non-consensual or forced sexual contact (where no intercourse has occurred) will likely receive a sanction

ranging from probation to expulsion, depending on the severity of the incident, and taking into account any previous disciplinary violations. Any person found responsible for violating the policy by nonconsensual or forced sexual intercourse will likely face a sanction of suspension or expulsion. iii. Intimate Partner/Dating Relationship Violence Violations: Any student found responsible for violating the policy by intimate partner violence will likely receive a sanction ranging from warning to expulsion depending on the severity of the incident, and taking into account any previous disciplinary violations. iv. Stalking Violations: Any student found responsible for violating the policy by stalking will likely receive a sanction ranging from warning to expulsion, depending on the severity of the incident, and taking into account any previous disciplinary violations.

# x. Finality Permissive

- f. The determination regarding responsibility becomes final either:
- iii. if an appeal is filed, on the date that SHU provides the parties with the written determination of the result of the appeal, or iv. if an appeal is not filed, the date on which an appeal would no longer be considered timely. (106.45(b)(7)(iii).)

#### **Appeals**

- i. Both parties may appeal from a determination regarding responsibility, or from a dismissal of a Formal Complaint or any allegations therein, on the following bases:
- a. A procedural irregularity, meaning an alleged failure to follow the process outlined in this Policy, that affected the outcome of the matter;
- b. New evidence that was not reasonably available to the appealing party at the time of the hearing or dismissal, that could affect the outcome of the matter; and
- c. The Title IX Coordinator, Investigator, or adjudicator(s) had a conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or the individual complainant or respondent that affected the outcome of the matter. The notice of appeal must describe specifically the basis upon which such conflict of interest or bias is alleged and how it allegedly affected the outcome.
- ii. Appeals must be submitted in writing to the Title IX Coordinator within 10 days of the date that the written adjudication determination is provided to the parties. The written appeal must state the grounds for the appeal, include the name of the appealing party, and bear evidence that it was submitted by the appealing party. The appeal statement must contain a sufficient description supporting the grounds for appeal. If the grounds for appeal is to consider new evidence that could affect the outcome of the matter that was not reasonably available to the appealing party before or during the time of the hearing or the dismissal, then the written appeal must include such information. The Title IX Coordinator retains discretion to verify and/or waive minor procedural variations in the timing and content of the appeal submission.

# iii. Upon receipt of an appeal, SHU will

- a. Notify the other party in writing when the appeal is filed and implement appeal procedures equally for both parties;
- b. Ensure that the decision-maker(s) for the appeal is not the same person as the decision- maker(s) that reached the original determination regarding responsibility or dismissal, the investigator(s), or the Title IX Coordinator;
- c. Ensure that the decision-maker(s) for the appeal does not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or an individual complainant or respondent, and that the decision-maker(s) for the appeal has received the appropriate and necessary training;
- d. Give both parties a reasonable, equal opportunity to submit a written statement in support of, or challenging, the outcome. (106.45(b)(8)(iii).)
- iv. SHU will provide a copy of the appeal to the non-appealing party. The non-appealing party may submit a written statement within 10 days that may seek to affirm the initial decision and/or respond to the appeal statement.
- v. The Title IX Coordinator has discretion to impose or withhold any applicable sanctions or supportive measures prior to the appeal deadline and prior to the resolution of any appeal.
- vi. The decision-maker(s) for the appeal will issue a written decision describing the result of the appeal and the rationale for the result within a reasonably prompt time frame following receipt of all appeals materials. The appeal will determine whether the adjudicator(s) made an error on the grounds alleged in the appeal statement. The appeal is typically determined based on the existing record, but the appeal decision-maker(s) will have discretion to convene a limited or full hearing if needed. The appeal decision will be given simultaneously to both parties. (106.45(b)(8)(iii)(E-F).)

#### Informal Resolution

At any time prior to reaching a determination regarding responsibility, SHU may facilitate an informal resolution process, such as mediation, that does not involve a full investigation and adjudication. SHU may not offer an informal resolution process unless a Formal Complaint is filed. Both parties must agree to participate in an informal resolution process, and if they do, the Formal Grievance Process stops. Either party may withdraw from the informal process and re-start the Formal Grievance Process at any time before an informal resolution is reached. SHU will not require the parties to participate in an informal resolution process and will not require them to waive their rights to a Formal Grievance Process. (106.45(b)(9).)

- i. SHU will not offer or facilitate an informal resolution process to resolve allegations that an employee sexually harassed a student. (106.45)(b)(9)(iii).)
- ii. Prior to facilitating an informal resolution process, SHU will:
- a. Provide written notice to the parties disclosing the following:
- i. The allegations;

- ii. The requirements of the informal resolution process, including the circumstances under which it precludes the parties from resuming a Formal Complaint arising from the same allegations;
- iii. The fact that, at any time prior to agreeing to an informal resolution, any party may withdraw from the informal resolution process and resume the Formal Grievance Process; and
- iv. Any consequences resulting from participating in the informal resolution process, including the records that will be maintained or could be shared.
- b. Provide written no Obtain the parties' voluntary, written consent to the informal resolution process. (106.45(b)(9)(i-ii).)
- iii. If the parties agree to a resolution during an informal resolution process, the Formal Complaint will be deemed withdrawn and the Formal Grievance Process will be terminated. However, the resolution will be considered binding, and its breach will give rise to a new Formal Grievance Process, which may restart the Formal Grievance Process.

# Retaliation (34 C.F.R. § 106.71.)

A. No person may intimidate, threaten, coerce, or discriminate against any individual for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX, its regulation, or this Policy, or because the individual has made a report or complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing. "Intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination, including charges against an individual for code of conduct violations that do not involve sex discrimination or sexual harassment, but arise out of the same facts or circumstances as a report or complaint of sex discrimination, or a report or formal complaint of sexual harassment, for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX or this [Policy], constitutes retaliation."

B. SHU will "keep confidential the identity of any individual who has made a report or complaint of sex discrimination, including any individual who has made a report or filed a formal complaint of sexual harassment, any complainant, any individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of sex discrimination, any respondent, and any witness, except as may be permitted" by Title IX, FERPA, or as otherwise required by law, or to carry out SHU's Title IX procedures.

- C. The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment does not constitute retaliation.
- D. Charging an individual with a code of conduct violation for making a materially false statement in bad faith in the course of a sexual misconduct grievance proceeding does not constitute retaliation. A determination regarding responsibility alone, however, is not sufficient to conclude that any party made a materially false statement in bad faith.
- E. Complaints alleging retaliation may be filed with a Title IX Coordinator.
- F. In the event an individual alleges that a Title IX Coordinator retaliated against them, the individual may file a complaint with Denise Tiberio, Dean of Students. The Office of Title IX will not oversee the investigation or adjudication of a complaint alleging that they engaged in retaliation.

# Sex Offender Registry

In accordance with the Campus Sex Crimes Prevention Act of 2000 which amends the Jacob Wetterling Crimes Against Children and Sexually Violent Offender Registration Act, the Jeanne Clery Act and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 Sacred Heart University is providing a link to the Connecticut State Sex Offender Registry. Connecticut General Statutes 54-250 through 54-261 mandate that the Connecticut Department of Public Safety establish and maintain a central registry of persons who have been convicted of certain sexual offenses and are required to register under law.

#### Sacred Heart University Health Services

203-371-7838 Call for an appointment

Note: The Department of Public Safety encourages pastoral and professional mental health counselors to refer people they are counseling to report crimes on a voluntary, confidential basis for inclusion in the annual crime statistics.

# Alcohol and Other Drug Policy Statement

Sacred Heart University is dedicated to creating an environment that allows students to achieve their educational goals and grow spiritually, intellectually and socially. The University is also committed to supporting students in demonstrating responsible conduct in the best interest of their personal health and well-being, the community's general welfare, and the rights of others. The University does not condone the illegal or otherwise irresponsible use of alcohol and other drugs. Every member of the University community is encouraged and expected to be aware the risks associated with alcohol and drug use and abuse. This responsibility obligates students to know relevant University policies and federal, state, and local laws and to conduct themselves in accordance with these laws and policies. Students are expected to assume responsibility for their behavior and must understand that being under the influence of alcohol/drugs in no way lessens accountability for their actions. Sacred Heart University complies with and enforces all federal, state, and local laws that regulate or prohibit the possession, use or distribution of alcoholic beverages or drugs. To these ends, the University publishes the following information regarding University policies and sanctions; laws and penalties concerning substance use and abuse; health and behavioral risks of drug use, and resources for treatment and educational programming.

# Alcohol Awareness & Abuse Prevention Program

Sacred Heart University acknowledges the fact that alcohol is a part of society, and supports the contention that use and abuse of alcohol is one of the most serious issues facing University students nationwide. Therefore, we strive to educate students about alcohol effects and the prevention of alcohol abuse.

#### **Alcohol Guidelines & Regulations**

The University maintains the position of **zero tolerance** for underage students consuming alcoholic beverages.

- No person under the age of 21 may acquire, purchase, obtain, possess, be in the presence of or consume alcoholic beverages.
- Use or possession of alcoholic beverages and their sale, delivery, or service to individuals under the age of 21 is prohibited.
- No person regardless of age is permitted to possess or consume alcohol within the on-campus residential areas (Roncalli Hall, Seton Hall, Merton Hall, Christian Witness Commons, Scholars Commons, Frassati Hall, Wiesel Hall, Bergoglio Hall, Cabrini Hall, Mother Teresa Hall, Toussaint Hall and Bowman Hall Hall) of the University, or the off-campus residential facilities at Pioneer Gardens.
- An individual, 21 or older, may consume alcohol on University property or at University sponsored events (Red's) only in areas where the University expressly allows the sale and consumption of alcohol.
- Any alcoholic beverage out of the original container or having a broken seal is considered an
  open container, which may not be carried or consumed on SHU grounds (except Red's pub area),
  and related facilities without authorization through an approved alcohol registration form.
- Students in residence hall rooms where alcohol is present may be considered in violation of this policy for not leaving or reporting violations.
- Residents are responsible for the actions/behaviors of their guests/visitors regarding alcohol possession and use and are expected to inform the guest of such policies.
- Possessing, furnishing, consuming or serving from a common source of alcohol (i.e. kegs, beer balls, punch bowls, trash cans or other excessive equivalent number servings.) is prohibited.
- Kegs and beer balls are not permitted on University property.
- Creating, offering, or engaging in drinking games and contests (i.e. beer pong etc.) and other behaviors designed for the purpose of becoming intoxicated through the abusive use of alcohol is prohibited.
- No person may use a fake ID, the driver's license or SHU ID card of another, supply such cards to another, furnish false information in obtaining such cards, or deface or alter such cards.
- Possession or using alcohol paraphernalia or beverage containers whether full or empty (including but not limited to beer bottles or cans, alcohol bottles, beer funnels, beer pong tables are not allowed in University residence facilities.
- The use or possession of grain alcohol, regardless of age is prohibited. Any public or private use
  of alcohol by students that leads to public or obvious intoxication to include but not limited to:
  (slurred speech, difficulty walking, requiring medical assistance, intrusive, destructive,
  disorderliness or violent behavior) is unacceptable for a Sacred Heart University student and will
  be treated as a disciplinary matter.

- All students are responsible for discouraging alcohol-related behavior that is abusive to themselves or to others. Any effort to induce or force a student to drink against his/her expressed desire is prohibited.
- Operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol is prohibited.
- Open containers including cups and squeeze bottles of alcohol are not permitted in public areas such as hallways, lobbies, stairwells, elevators, balconies, porches, community or common areas at any time.
- Alcohol use is allowed for students of legal age (over 21) who reside in The Ridge, Toussaint,
   Oakwood and Taft, and only in apartments in which all the residents as well as their guest(s) who are of the legal drinking age of 21.

All other residence halls and apartments in The Ridge, Taft, Pioneer Gardens, Oakwood, and Toussaint are considered "dry," and no alcohol or alcohol containers are permitted in these areas.

#### **Definitions & Guidelines**

#### **Legal Age**

State law states that only individuals who are 21 years of age or older may purchase, possess and consume alcohol.

#### Underage

State law states that individuals under 21 years of age may neither, possess, consume nor purchase alcohol.

#### Intoxication

No student may be intoxicated while on-campus.

#### Supplying

No one may purchase for or provide alcohol to anyone underage. It is the responsibility of the host to comply with state and local laws. A social host may be held responsible for injuries and damages caused by a minor who is served alcohol.

#### **Open Container**

Any alcoholic beverage out of the original container or having a broken seal is considered an open container, which may not be carried or consumed on SHU grounds (except Red's area or other areas designated by University officials) or without authorization through an approved alcohol registration form. Designated areas by University officials include but are not limited to: Edgerton Lobby, Student Center Patio, and designated parking lots.

#### **Kegs/Beer Balls**

Kegs and beer balls or common containers over 64 ounces are not permitted on campus (except in Red's) without an approved alcohol registration form. Also, alcohol "punches" using wine or hard liquor are not permitted on campus.

#### Sale of Alcohol

Beer is sold only in Red's area during designated hours. Any other sale of alcohol on campus must have approval through an alcohol registration form and State resources. Employees of Red's have the right and responsibility to deny the sale of beer or wine to anyone under the age of 21, anyone using or presenting a false ID, anyone intoxicated and for any other reason deemed necessary.

If illegal use or possession of drugs or alcohol is presumed to be taking place behind closed or locked doors in a residence facility, the Residential Life staff will respond appropriately. An announcement will be made that entry to the room will take place. If the room's occupants do not voluntarily allow access, then access will be made by the use of a key.

#### **Events with Alcohol**

Every event with alcohol at Sacred Heart University must be registered and authorized through the Student Union Office by the Director of the Student Union. This is necessary for adherence to state and SHU guidelines for legal sale, distribution, and consumption of alcoholic beverages. Failure to do so will result in event cancellation.

All applicants must make an appointment with the Director of the Student Union no later than 2 weeks before the event date (if a Connecticut state issued temporary permit is needed, applicants will need to make an appointment no later than one month before the event date).

The purchase of alcohol for an event cannot be made using money allocated by Student Government. Alcohol must be ordered by the Director of the Student Union. An event representative must be present to accept delivery and transfer alcohol to event location.

All events with alcohol require the attendance of the club/organization advisor throughout the entire event. State law and SHU policy mandate that no person under the age of 21 years can purchase, obtain/possess or consume alcoholic beverages. All events at which alcohol beverages are being sold (entrance fee or per drink charge) must be in compliance with state law, requiring a permit from the Department of Liquor Control. Information on obtaining temporary permits can be found in the Student Union Office. Students who wish to hold an event with alcoholic beverages must contact the Director of the Student Union in the Student Union Office for event registration, guidelines, authorization, and ordering. Any event not properly registered through the Student Affairs Office and/or State of Connecticut, will be canceled. Any function which provides an alcoholic beverage must also provide a nonalcoholic beverage alternative in sufficient quantity and food must be available and featured prominently. Consumption of alcohol is not an acceptable excuse for any behavior deemed inappropriate or in violation of University rules and policies.

#### Guidelines for Events with Alcohol

- All student events (not in Red's Pub) with alcohol must be registered and approved by the
  Director of Student Union. A six-week notice is necessary to file for state-mandated, temporary
  permits. Registration forms, policy and procedure forms, and permit information are available in
  the Student Union Office.
- Alcohol should never be the primary focus of any event.
- Always serve food with alcohol. High protein foods help moderate the effects of alcohol. At dinner parties, try to not let the cocktail hour extend for a great length of time.
- Never force drinks on your guests. Drinks should be paced to help your guests observe their own
  personal limit. There are those who do not drink, so please be respectful of that decision and
  right.
- Always have non-alcoholic drinks available. Create an atmosphere that is comfortable for both drinkers and non-drinkers.
- Close the bar at least one hour before the event ends.
- Always prevent an intoxicated individual from driving. If you are having an event where alcohol
  plays a role, then it is the responsibility of your organization to contact the Student Union (203396-8027) and arrange to have the shuttles extended to 1 a.m. There will be a cost charged to
  your organization for this, but safety comes first.
- The temporary permittee must not drink any alcohol before or during the event. The host and/or permittee must ensure that guests are not overdrinking. Remember that there are safety and legal issues to consider.
- Always require proof of drinking age. State law requires that servers of alcohol check every
  customer's or guest's ID card. Have a plan for carding (either at the door or at the bar). Serving
  alcohol to underage guests can pose serious legal problems.
- Always deny service when guests are already intoxicated or when they have had a large number of drinks.
- Control party entrances and exits.
- If you are expecting any underage guests, it is important to control access to effectively obtain proof of age and to prohibit "sharing" drinks or having others purchase and deliver alcohol to underage guests.

# Drugs

The possession, use, misuse, manufacture, distribution, improper possession, possession with intent to sell and/or sale of illegal/unauthorized harmful drugs, prescription medication, drug paraphernalia (including but not limited to hookahs, pipes, bongs, bowls, e-cigs etc.) misuse of any product to act as a drug is a violation of state and federal laws, and is contrary to Sacred Heart University policies. Students found responsible for violating any part of this policy, are subject to university disciplinary action and/or arrest and prosecution by state and/or federal authorities. Although some states have legalized medical marijuana and/or legalized it for recreational use, the possession and use of marijuana in any form

remains illegal under federal law. Consistent with federal law, including the Controlled Substances Act and the Drug Free Schools and Communities Act, the use and/or possession of marijuana continues to be prohibited for any student of Sacred Heart University whether on or off University property. Students who are concerned with their own or someone else's substance use/abuse or addiction may contact Prevention Specialist at the Wellness Center Counseling Service, at 203-371-7955.

#### Weapons

Sacred Heart University enforces state laws concerning the possession of illegal weapons on campus. Weapons, including but not limited to firearms, explosives, Tasers, fireworks, swords, and knives, are not permitted on any property owned or leased by Sacred Heart University. Violators are subject to criminal charges and University disciplinary action. The University also reserves the right to remove from anyone on campus (or in their residence) any item that may be deemed a threat to the safety and well-being of others on campus. Such items include, but are not limited to, knives, cap guns, and other objects, which in and of themselves may not be illegal.

# **Public Safety Responsibilities & Programs**

#### Fire Safety & Prevention



The Department of Public Safety is responsible for maintaining fire extinguishers in all University buildings on campus. A contract company annually inspects and certifies all fire extinguishers, recharging and/or replacing units as required by the NFPA code. All campus buildings are equipped with fire alarm systems. When activated, the

alarms sound horns/sirens or voice recordings, and activate visual strobe lights throughout the building. These fire alarms systems comprise smoke detectors, heat detectors, and pull stations.

Public Safety Officers respond to fire alarms in all buildings. In addition to the response of Public Safety Officers, the local fire department responds to all audible fire alarms in all residential halls. The residential halls and on-campus apartments are also equipped with sprinkler systems, which also sound the building fire alarm system if activated.

#### Fire Drills

In conjunction with local fire departments, fire drills are conducted in all residence facilities each semester. It is crucial that resident students comply with the University Fire Safety Regulations, which are published in the SHU Student Handbook.

Annual Campus Fire Safety Report (See pages 76 through 95 for details.)

# Crime Prevention & Security Awareness

Sacred Heart University's Department of Public Safety believes preventing crime is more beneficial than reacting to them after the fact. A primary vehicle for accomplishing this goal is the department's crime prevention program. This program is based on the concept of eliminating or minimizing criminal

opportunities whenever possible, and encouraging students and employees to be responsible for their own security and safety. Brochures and posters carrying crime prevention and awareness information related to residence hall safety and security, sexual assault, bicycle security, personal escorts, motor vehicles security, and thefts are posted and distributed throughout campus.

Upon request, the Department of Public Safety provides safety presentations to the SHU community. Presentations can be created and tailored to address specific concerns of the requesting department. Presentations can be conducted in a variety of settings, such as residential halls, classes, and student activity meetings. The Department of Public Safety also issues safety tips, information, and reminders throughout the year via email to staff, faculty, and students.

A mobile app called SHU SAFE has been deployed on campus. Its primary function is to serve as an emergency communication tool between the University community and campus security, as well as local emergency first-responders. SHU Safe offers three major features: Emergency Call, Safety Check and iReport (reporting of suspicious activities). View Crime Prevention & Reporting Page

Anyone who experiences or comes upon an emergency can open the SHU SAFE app and choose the type of emergency assistance needed.

Sacred Heart University is one of the first universities in the nation to launch a system so advanced that it can pinpoint where an individual is inside a building. Unlike traditional GPS locators that can only identify a building, SHU SAFE identifies exact locations within buildings, which can drastically reduce Campus Security's response times.

The iReports feature allows users to report suspicious activity or call for help in non-emergency situations. Users can report everything from a suspicious person to vandalism or theft. The feature also can be used to call for help with a flat tire, locked door, or other non-emergency. The iReports feature may be used anonymously.

The safety check feature allows for a check-in with someone in the user's contact list. For example, if a student is going to be walking home from class late at night or going for a jog after dark, he or she can let a contact know the expected arrival time. If the feature is not deactivated by the appointed time, the contact will receive a text.

<u>View Silent Witness Program and Missing Student Reporting Page</u>

#### Silent Witness

The program is a means for members of the campus community to provide anonymous information to help:

- Prevent violence on campus.
- Assist people who are at risk of harming themselves or others.
- Report improper conduct.
- Report general safety and security concerns.

• Report concern for a possible missing student.

The program is a computer portal on the Department of Public Safety web site providing a campus-wide communication method for anyone to submit information related to a concern or improper conduct. The program complies with Connecticut Public Act PA 08-157

The Silent Witness Program is not for reporting emergency information.

#### **View Silent Witness Program Information**

For emergency situations on campus, call Public Safety at 203-371-7911. For routine calls 203-371-7995

#### Missing Student

If a member of the University community has reason to believe that a student who resides in on-campus housing is missing, he or she immediately should notify SHU's Department of Public Safety, Dean of Students or representative of Residential Life. Public Safety will generate a missing person report and initiate an investigation.

Students age 18 or older, including emancipated minors, living in on-campus housing will be provided the opportunity during each registration process to designate an individual for Sacred Heart officials to contact when the student is officially reported as missing. (University officials and police will use this contact information only for this purpose.) After investigating the missing person report, should Public Safety determine the student is missing, its officers will notify the municipal police department of jurisdiction and the student's emergency or confidential contact. Police also will be contacted if the student has not registered a contact person under this program. Sacred Heart University is required to notify the custodial parent or legal guardian if a student under the age of 18 is determined to be missing.

If SHU Public Safety Officers are unable to ascertain the location of a missing student within a reasonable time based on existing information, the municipal police of jurisdiction will be notified to investigate. Public Safety will assist municipal police and continue internal investigative efforts until this matter is resolved. Public Safety assesses each missing person report on a case-by-case basis, and notifies the police as needed.

# Blue Light Call Boxes

The Department of Public Safety maintains blue light call boxes on Park Avenue Campus and other leased or owned facilities. They allow an individual who needs assistance to contact the Dispatch Center and provide immediate, two-way radio communication. Every public safety officer receives the alert signal, and the closest available officer will respond to assist the person.

#### **Safety Escorts**

For locations not served by the University Shuttle service (and when it is not operating), the Department of Public Safety provides escorts from dusk to dawn upon request from, and to, any on-campus location. Medical escorts are also provided to individuals who are injured or temporarily disabled.

# **Student Orientation Program**

A representative of the Department of Public Safety speaks with parents of new students during the summer orientation programs and to new students in the fall as part of their orientation program.

# **Employee Orientation Program**

In conjunction with the Human Resources Department, a representative of the Department of Public Safety speaks with new employees about security on campus.

# **Key Control & Security Card Access**

The University Locksmith reports to the Director of Public Safety. The Department of Public Safety provides students with key-card access and, where applicable, "metal" keys for their residence facilities. Lost or stolen keys or key cards should be reported immediately to the Department of Public Safety. Faculty and staff also receive keys and may request keys or lock changes through the Department of Public Safety Locksmith. The University has upgraded to a One-Card system, through which a student's SHU ID is programmed to be used as their key card to their residential hall. Students also use their SHU ID to access their meal plan, make purchases at the campus bookstore, access print/copy stations, access Mac-Gray laundry points, and make purchases through off-campus vendors.

# Motor Vehicle Registration & Parking Enforcement

The Department of Public Safety is responsible for parking and traffic on campus. Vehicles parked on campus must be properly registered with the University and have the appropriate parking decal. For parking decals or questions, email <a href="mailto:parkingINFO@sacredheart.edu">parkingINFO@sacredheart.edu</a>

View Parking Policy and Visitor Parking Procedures

# **Parking Lot Security**

Public Safety Officers in highly visible, well-marked vehicles patrol all parking lots on campus or at owned or leased facilities in Fairfield, Bridgeport, and Trumbull. University public safety or contract security officers conduct random foot or bicycle safety patrols through parking lots on campus.

#### Lost & Found

If you have lost property, you may come to the Public Safety Office or call to see if the property was turned in to us. Global emails should not be sent out concerning lost property. These matters will be handled by the Public Safety Dispatch Office for a determination of ownership.

# Suspicious Mail & Packages

Any suspicious packages (backpacks/book bags) or other items should be reported to Public Safety for immediate investigation and a determination of ownership.

# Maintenance and Security of Campus Grounds & Facilities

The University maintains a strong commitment to campus safety and security. Exterior lighting is an important part of this commitment. Surveys of all exterior lighting, including parking areas, pedestrian walkways and building exteriors are forwarded to the Campus Operations Department, which expedites work orders (MOPS) that are submitted to them. Members of the University community are encouraged to report any exterior lighting deficiencies to the Department of Public Safety, or directly to Campus Operations.

A computer aided alarm system monitors a campus-wide network of intrusion, fire, and duress alarms. These systems are monitored 24 hours a day at the Public Safety Dispatch Center.

Public Safety Officers lock the exterior doors of campus buildings each evening after classes end for the day. Door and locking deficiencies are reported to the Campus Operations Department and the locksmith respectively for corrective action. Public Safety Officers also report to Campus Operations any shrubbery or trees that may pose a security hazard. Campus roadways, parking areas, walkways, buildings, and grounds are patrolled 24 hours a day, every day of the year by Public Safety Officers. Contract security officers supplement the public safety staff, providing a visible deterrent to crime and serving as additional "eyes and ears" for the Department of Public Safety. Additionally, Public Safety deploys a robust network of security surveillance cameras at University-owned or -leased facilities to assist with overall security and safety matters, including investigations of complaints.

Public Safety Officers lock the exterior doors of campus buildings each evening after classes end for the day. Door and locking deficiencies are reported to the Campus Operations Department and the locksmith respectively for corrective action. Public Safety Officers also report to Campus Operations any shrubbery or trees that may pose a security hazard. Campus roadways, parking areas, walkways, buildings, and grounds are patrolled 24 hours a day, every day of the year by Public Safety Officers. Contract security officers supplement the public safety staff, providing a visible deterrent to crime and serving as additional "eyes and ears" for the Department of Public Safety. Additionally, Public Safety deploys a robust network of security surveillance cameras at University-owned or -leased facilities to assist with overall security and safety matters, including investigations of complaints.

# F.B.I. Definitions of Reportable Crimes

The following definitions are outlined in the Federal Bureau of Investigation Uniform Crime reporting, National Incident-Based Reporting System (NIBRS), which colleges and universities are required to use in reporting crime statistics:

#### Criminal Homicide

- Murder and non-negligent manslaughter: The willful (non-negligent) killing of one human being by another.
- Negligent homicide: The killing of another person through gross negligence

#### Sex Offenses

- **Forcible Rape:** The carnal knowledge of a person, forcibly and/or against the person's will, during which the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his or her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity (or because of his or her youth).
- Forcible Fondling: The touching of the private body parts of another person for the purpose of
  sexual gratification, forcibly and/or against that person's will; or not forcibly against the person's
  will, when the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his or her youth or because of his
  or her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.
- Incest: Non-forcible sexual intercourse between people who are related to each other within the degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.
- **Statutory Rape:** Non-forcible sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age of consent.

#### Other Offenses

- **Robbery**: Taking or attempting to take anything of value from the care, custody, or control of a person or people by force or threat of force or violence and/or by putting the victim in fear.
- Aggravated Assault: An unlawful attack by one person upon another to inflict severe or
  aggravated bodily injury. This type of assault usually is accompanied by the use of a weapon or
  by means likely to produce death or great bodily harm.
- **Simple Assault:** An unlawful physical attack by one person upon another in which neither the offender displays a weapon, nor the victim suffers obvious severe or aggravated bodily injury involving apparent broken bones, loss of teeth, possible internal injury, severe laceration or loss of consciousness.
- **Intimidation:** To unlawfully place another person in reasonable fear of bodily harm through the use of threatening words and/or other conduct, but without displaying a weapon or subjecting the victim to actual physical attack.
- Destruction/Damage/Vandalism of Property (Except Arson): To willfully or maliciously destroy, deface, or otherwise injure real or personal property without the consent of the owner or the person having custody or control of it.
- Burglary: The unlawful entry of a structure to commit a felony or theft. For reporting purposes,
  this definition includes: unlawful entry with intent to commit a larceny or a felony, breaking and
  entering with intent to commit a larceny, housebreaking, safecracking, and all attempts to
  commit any of the aforementioned acts. Included are the sub-categories of Burglary Forcible
  Entry, Burglary Unlawful Entry, No Force, and Burglary Attempted Forcible Entry

- Motor Vehicle Theft: The theft or attempted theft of a motor vehicle.
- **Arson:** Any willful or malicious burning or attempt to burn, with or without intent to defraud, a dwelling house, public building, motor vehicle or aircraft, personal property of another, etc.

#### Hate Crimes 34 CFR 668.46 (b)(1) and 34 CFR 668.46 (c)(3)

Any of the aforementioned offenses, and any other crime involving bodily injury, that manifests evidence that the victim was intentionally selected because of the perpetrator's bias.

The categories of bias are:

- Race
- Gender
- Religion
- Sexual Orientation
- Ethnicity/national origin
- Disability

Below are additional hate crimes added in the Higher Education Opportunity Act of 2008

- Larceny/Theft: The unlawful taking, carrying, leading, or riding away of property from the possession or constructive possession of another. (Note: Constructive possession is defined by Black's Law Dictionary, 6th Ed. As "where one does not have physical custody or possession, but is in a position to exercise dominion or control over the thing.")
  - Pocket-picking: The theft of articles from another person's physical possession by stealth, when the victim usually does not become immediately aware of the theft.
  - Purse-snatching: The grabbing or snatching of a purse, handbag, etc., from the physical possession of another person.
  - Shoplifting: The theft, by someone other than an employee of the victim, of goods or merchandise exposed for sale.
  - Theft from Building: A theft from within a building that is either open to the public or where the offender has legal access.
  - Theft from coin-operated machine or device: A theft from a machine or device that is operated or activated by the use of coins.
  - Theft from motor vehicle: The theft of articles from a motor vehicle, whether locked or unlocked.
  - Theft of motor vehicle parts or accessories: The theft of any part or accessory affixed to the interior or exterior of a motor vehicle in a manner that would make the item an attachment of the vehicle, or necessary for its operation.
  - All other larceny: All thefts that do not fit any of the definitions of the specific subcategories of larceny or theft listed above.
- **Simple Assault:** An unlawful physical attack by one person upon another, in which neither the offender displays a weapon, nor the victim suffers obvious severe or aggravated bodily injury

- involving apparent broken bones, loss of teeth, possible internal injury, severe laceration, or loss of consciousness.
- **Intimidation:** To unlawfully place another person in reasonable fear of bodily harm through the use of threatening words and/or other conduct, but without displaying a weapon or subjecting the victim to actual physical attack.
- Destruction/Damage/Vandalism of Property (Except "Arson"): To willfully or maliciously
  destroy, damage, deface, or otherwise injure real or personal property without the consent of
  the owner or the person having custody or control of it.

#### Other Offenses

- Liquor law violations: The violation of state or local law or ordinances prohibiting the manufacture, sale, transporting, furnishing, possession or use of intoxicating beverages, not including driving under the influence and drunkenness. Included in this classification are: the manufacture, sale, transporting, furnishing, possession, etc. of intoxicating liquor; maintaining unlawful drinking places; bootlegging; operating a still; furnishing alcohol to a minor or intemperate person; underage possession; using a vehicle for illegal transportation of liquor; drinking on a train or public conveyance; and attempts to commit any of the above.
- **Drug abuse violations:** Violations of laws prohibiting the possession, distribution and/or use of certain controlled substances and the equipment or devices used in their preparation and/or use. The unlawful cultivation, manufacture, distribution, sale, purchase, use, possession, transportation, or importation of any controlled drug or narcotic substance. Arrests for violations of state and local laws, specifically those relating to the unlawful possession, sale, use, growing, manufacturing, and making of narcotic drugs. The relevant substances include: opium or cocaine and their derivatives (morphine, heroin, codeine); marijuana; synthetic narcotics- manufactured narcotics which can cause true addiction (Demerol, methadone); and dangerous non-narcotic drugs (barbiturates, Benzedrine).
- Weapons law violations: Violations of laws or ordinances prohibiting the manufacture, sale, purchase, transportation, possession, concealment, or use of firearms, cutting instruments, explosives, incendiary devices, or other deadly weapons. This classification includes offenses that are regulatory in nature. Included in this classification are: manufacture, sale or possession of deadly weapons; carrying deadly weapons, concealed or openly; use, manufacture, etc., of silencers; furnishing deadly weapons to minors; aliens possessing deadly weapons.

### Anti-Discrimination and Discriminatory Harassment Policy

Sacred Heart University is committed to fostering a safe, inclusive, and respectful environment for all members of our community, in alignment with our Catholic mission and values. Hazing is strictly prohibited and incompatible with our recognition of the dignity and worth of every human being. This policy applies to all students, faculty, staff, student organizations, athletic teams, alumni groups, and other affiliates of the university, both on- and off-campus. This policy is in accordance with Connecticut

state law, federal regulations including the Stop Campus Hazing Act of 2024, and university expectations for community standards.

#### **Campus Security Authorities**

In addition to the Department of Public Safety, the United States Department of Education has defined those who must report crimes for the compilation of this annual report to be university officials "with significant responsibility for student and campus activities." This includes, but is not limited to, "student housing...and campus judicial proceedings." While job titles may vary from institution to institution, the rules indicate that anyone who monitors entry or access to a campus facility — such as an employee who checks in visitors to the dorms, dean of students, director of athletics, team coaches, and faculty advisors to a student groups, anyone who oversees student extracurricular activities, coordinator of Greek Life, resident assistants and directors, student union and student life staff and wellness counselor —would be required to report. We espouse that all SHU employees have a responsibility to report improper or criminal conduct, excluding clergy and counselors who must maintain confidentiality.

The aforementioned University personnel are required to report all matters of misconduct including matters of possible criminal conduct to Public Safety for investigation and statistical compliance requirements.

View additional information about training and guidance at the U.S. Department of Education website

#### Referred for Campus Discipline

The referral of any student to any campus official who initiates a disciplinary action of which a record is kept and which may result in the imposition of a sanction. This is the number of referrals, not the number found responsible.

### SHU Emergency Management

The SHU Comprehensive All-Hazard & Business Continuity Plan (CAH&BCP) encompasses both internal and external resources critical to our success in emergency situations to ensure the business continuation of education services at Sacred Heart University. SHU coordinates all emergency incidents with police, fire, EMS, health, and hazmat officials in each municipality where we have owned or leased facilities. Additionally, police agencies inform SHU Public Safety regarding crimes or hazards that occur so as to keep the University community aware of safety and security matters.

#### Executive — Emergency Management Policy Group (EMPG)

The EMPG's role is that of policy and major decisions. Typically, this would be centered on planning and preparation prior to and recovery from the incident, the long-term effects of the incident and the needs to restore the University to normal operations. The EMPG would be directly involved in incident stabilization only if major expenditures or policy decisions were needed to complete the stabilization. This team provides centralized direction and control of any or all functions as they pertain to Sacred Heart University. Members are as follows:

- President
- Provost and Vice President of Academic Affairs
- Senior Vice President of Administration and Planning
- Senior Vice President for Finance
- Senior Vice President for Student Engagement
- Vice President of Enrollment Management
- University General Counsel
- Vice President for Human Resources
- Vice President for Marketing & Communications
- Vice President of University Advancement
- Vice President for Finance (Liaison to EPT)

Other ad hoc members for professional and/or technical expertise:

- Dean of the College of Health Professions
- Dean of the Davis & Henley College of Nursing
- Dean of the College of Arts & Sciences
- Dean of the Welch College of Business & Technology
- Dean of the Farrington College of Education & Human Development
- Dean of Students (Liaison to EPT)
- Director of the School of Communication, Media & the Arts
- Director of Wellness and Health Services (Liaison to EPT)

#### Managerial — Emergency Planning Team (EPT)

The Emergency Planning Team is organized under the Incident Command System (ICS) and headed by the Incident Commander (SHU Public Safety Executive Director, and the Director.) The EPT members are activated based on the incident's type and nature, to manage the operational aspects of the University's response to an emergency event. Each area identified as part of the EPT is determined to have critical responsibilities on a University-wide basis during emergency situations.

The Executive Director of Public Safety, the Director will test the emergency response and evacuation procedures annually, documenting a description of the exercise as well as the date and time of the exercise and whether it was announced or unannounced.

#### **Emergency Response & Evacuation Procedures**

### **Policy**

To ensure the safety of students, faculty, staff and visitors, the following procedure has been developed and will be implemented in emergencies during an alarm or when University officials give an order to evacuate.

#### **Procedures**

The process of emergency response and communications is contained in the SHU Comprehensive All Hazard and Business Continuity Plan at Section VIII entitled Emergency Response Actions. An evacuation of University buildings may be required any time a condition exists that has been deemed an emergency or potentially hazardous condition by the Department of Public Safety or University officials.

#### Students, Faculty and Staff — Actions required

- When a building is in full alarm (horns, sirens, strobe lights), immediately evacuate. Once
  outside, move to a clear area at least 500 feet away from the affected building(s). Keep streets,
  fire lanes, hydrants, and walkways clear for emergency vehicles and crews. Faculty and staff
  should lead students by example. Classes should assemble to ensure that everyone has
  evacuated the building.
- Instructors must ensure all students evacuate the classroom.
- Do not use elevators to exit a building.
- Report to the nearest exit and await further instructions from Public Safety Officers.
- If you are away from your office or classroom when an alarm sounds, you should exit the building immediately and not return to said office or classroom.
- Do not reenter the building until Public Safety Officers and/or University officials give the "all clear" signal after the alarm has been silenced and reset.

Follow any instructions given by Public Safety Officers, municipal police, or the fire department.

Sacred Heart's Emergency Notification will be given to the campus community or the affected subsection of campus thereof, without delay, having taken into account the community's safety, the content of the notification information, unless the notification will, in the professional judgment of responsible authorities, compromise efforts to assist victims or to contain, respond to, or otherwise mitigate the emergency.

#### Emergency Alert System / EAS – Blackboard Connect

EAS is activated under the authority of Public Safety officials as defined in the chain of command. EAS is tested a minimum of annually, as actual events may warrant use of the system. Also, the software tracks use and reports are generated on its deployment. The system has all-hazard templates to be used such as: active shooter, weather emergency, power outage with specific instructions for affect persons to follow. Also, municipal and state emergency services partners notify the Department of Public Safety of any event under the all-hazard FEMA guidelines concerning matters that may potentially impact the University community. Annual meetings are held with municipal and state partners to ensure operational preparedness.

- SMS/Email/Phone/Fax SHU EAS / Emergency Alert System: A combination of cell phone
  numbers and e-mail addresses will be inputted in order to send text messages to cell phones, email to e-mail address, and recorded messages to cell phones or voice-mail boxes. The message
  will advise University members that an emergency is occurring on campus. Sacred Heart
  University is using the Blackboard Connect platform for its mass notification system. Classroom
  phones (aka "bat phones") will also be utilized to send messages to persons in classrooms.
- Public Address System: where applicable the public address systems in buildings will be utilized
  to make an emergency announcement. Public Safety Officers will also utilize vehicle and portable
  PA systems.
- Sacred Heart website and social media accounts: Emergency Broadcast System announcements.
   People logging onto the SHU website (from off campus) will be redirected to a page where emergency information will be displayed.
- **Global Outlook:** Email messages sent to all employees, faculty, staff and students advising them there is an emergency on campus and with instructions.

### **Timely Warning Policy**

The purpose of this policy is to codify this department's policy and procedures concerning the Timely Warning Alerts issued by the SHU Department of Public Safety.

#### Policy

It is the policy of the Department of Public Safety to issue Timely Notifications & Crime Alerts to notify community members about certain crimes in and around our community. For the purposes of this policy, "timely manner" generally means within 24 hours after an incident has been brought to the attention of a "campus security authority" as defined in the Clery Act and sufficient information has been gathered to define the nature and scope of the situation and there is a presence of a continuing threat.

Further in compliance with the "Timely Notice" provisions of the federal HEA Title IV, Section 485(f) of the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act of 1998 SHU Public Safety will give "immediate notice upon confirmation" of a significant emergency or dangerous situation that could pose an "immediate threat" to the health or safety of students, faculty or staff, occurring at locations within SHU's Clery Geography, unless the issuing of a notification will compromise efforts to contain the emergency at the discretion of senior SHU DPS or Municipal Police officials.

#### **General Operational Procedure**

The Executive Director of Public Safety, the Director of Public Safety, or his/her designee are responsible for consulting with department staff, local police department(s), and with other campus authorities (as deemed necessary) in making the determination on a case-by-case basis of when "Timely Notification" information in the form of a Crime Alert is disseminated. These alerts should be approved by the Executive Director, the Director of Public Safety or his/her designate in their absence.

When a Crime Alert is issued, it is the responsibility of the issuing authority to cause immediate notification to the representatives of the Dean of Students office, the Department of Marketing & Communications regarding external public communications and other necessary administration. Notification shall also be issued to municipal police departments, if applicable.

In relation to the Clery Act, a three-prong test shall be applied to determine if a Crime Alert will be issued:

- Is the incident being reported to Public Safety, as campus security authorities or to municipal police agencies for criminal investigation?
- Is the complaint identified as a Clery Act crime (Murder; Non-Negligent Manslaughter; Aggravated Assault; Robbery; Forcible Sex Offenses; Forcible Rape; Forcible Sodomy Sexual Assault with an Object; Burglary and new hate crimes: larceny / theft; simple assault; intimidation; and destruction, damage, or vandalism of property?
- Is the crime considered to represent a serious or continuing threat to students, faculty, staff, or visitors?

Determining whether to issue a Crime Alert for non-Clery Act crimes shall be evaluated on a case-by-case basis, taking into account both the frequency of offense and likelihood for additional occurrence.

#### Other Important Public Safety Resources

- SHU Municipal Emergency Services Partners (Fairfield, Bridgeport and Trumbull)
- SHU Emergency Plan
- Campus Emergency Training materials
- Information on Identity Theft Prevention
- Emergency Notification Sign up Information
- Campus Safety 101 Video and Interactive Quiz
- SHU SAFE mobile app for community access to 911 emergency services
- SHU Active Shooter & All Hazards Emergency Training Video's/Be SHU Ready!
- Emergency Preparedness

#### Park Avenue Campus

In accordance with Connecticut General Statute 10a-55a (b) and Public Law 101-542, the Student Right-to-Know and Campus Security Act, the following data is the statistical crime report for Sacred Heart University's Fairfield Campus in Fairfield, CT. The FTE (Full Time Equivalent) for students and employees for 2023-2024 on Sacred Heart University's Fairfield Campus was (12,892): students (11,022); employees (1870). Approximately 3600 students and 16 employees lived in campus housing during the 2023-2024 Academic Year.

Note: As the FBI in its own crime report notes: "Caution should be exercised in making any inter-campus comparisons or ranking schools, as university/college crime statistics are affected by a variety of factors. These include: demographic characteristics of the surrounding community, ratio of male to female students, number of on-campus residents, accessibility of outside visitors, size of enrollment, etc."

#### **Definitions**

- On Campus: any building or property owned or controlled by an institution of higher education within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area of the institution and used by the institution in direct support of, or in a manner related to, the institution's educational purposes, including residence halls; and a) property within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area of the institution that is owned by the institution but is controlled by another person, b) is frequently used by students and c) supports institutional purposes (such as food or other retail vendor).
- **Residential Facility:** a subset of "on campus" crimes, which includes only those crimes that were reported to have occurred in dormitories or other residential facilities for students, on campus.
- Non-Campus Building or Property: any building or property owned or controlled by a student organization officially recognized by the institution and any building or property (other than a branch campus) owned or controlled by an institution of higher education that: a) is used in direct support of, or in relation to, the institution's educational purposes, b) is frequently used by students, and c) is not within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area of the institution.
- **Public Property:** all public property, including thoroughfares, streets, sidewalks, and parking facilities, and is within the campus, or immediately adjacent to and accessible from the campus.
- Hate Crimes: defined by the Department of Education in the Federal Register Part IX-34 CFR Part
  668 as crimes involving bodily injury, larceny/theft, simple assault, intimidation, and/or
  destruction/damage/vandalism/ of property in which the victim is intentionally selected because
  of the actual or perceived race, gender, religion, sexual orientation, ethnicity, or disability of the
  victim that are reported to campus authorities or local police agencies. The VAWA amendments
  added gender identity and national origin to the categories.

## Arrest

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Liquor	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Drug Law	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Illegal	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							

# Judicial Referrals

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Liquor	2022	461	461	445	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2023	413	413	405	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2024	560	560	530	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Drug Law	2022	51	51	48	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2023	30	30	30	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2024	68	68	68	0	0	0
Violations							
Illegal	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2024	1	1	1	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							

# Criminal Homicide

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Murder/Non-	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent							
Homicide							
Murder/Non-	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent							
Homicide							
Murder/Non-	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent							
Homicide							
Manslaughter	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
by							
Negligence							
Manslaughter	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
by							
Negligence							
Manslaughter	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
by							
Negligence							

# Sex Offenses

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Rape	2022	9	9	9	0	0	0
Rape	2023	10	9	7	1	0	0
Rape	2024	4	4	4	0	0	0
Forcible	2022	3	3	3	0	0	0
Fondling							
Forcible	2023	3	3	2	0	0	0
Fondling							
Forcible	2024	4	4	3	0	0	0
Fondling							
Incest	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape							
Statutory	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape							
Statutory	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape							

# Robbery

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# Aggravated Assault

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
2022	1	1	1	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0

# Burglary

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	5	5	2	0	0	0
2024	1	1	0	0	0	0

# **Motor Vehicle Theft**

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	1	1	0	0	0	0
2024	1	1	0	0	0	0

### Arson

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

## **VAWA-Domestic Violence**

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	2	2	2	0	0	0
2023	4	4	3	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **VAWA-Dating Violence**

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	3	3	3	0	0	0
2023	6	6	6	0	0	0
2024	5	5	5	0	0	0

## **VAWA-Stalking**

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
2022	8	8	4	0	0	0
2023	16	16	7	0	0	0
2024	7	7	3	0	0	0

### **Hate Crimes**

Murder/Non-Negligent Homicide, Manslaughter by Negligence, Rape, Forcible Fondling, Incest, Statutory Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Motor Vehicle Theft, Arson, Larceny, Intimidation, Vandalism

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Race	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Race	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Race	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Religion	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Religion	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Religion	2024	1	1	1	0	0	0
Sexual	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Orientation							
Sexual	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Orientation							
Sexual	2024	2	2	2	0	0	0
Orientation							
Ethnicity	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ethnicity	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ethnicity	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Disability	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Disability	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Disability	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Identity							
Gender	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Identity							

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Gender	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Identity							
National	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Origin							
National	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Origin							
National	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Origin							

# Tandet Center at Stamford Hospital

Address: 4 Hospital Plaza, Stamford, CT 06902

**Stamford Police Department** 

#### Arrest

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Liquor	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Drug Law	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Illegal	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Illegal	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							

## **Judicial Referrals**

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Liquor	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Drug Law	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Illegal	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							

# **Criminal Homicide**

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Murder/Non-	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent							
Homicide							

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Murder/Non-	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent							
Homicide							
Murder/Non-	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent							
Homicide							
Manslaughter	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
by							
Negligence							
Manslaughter	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
by							
Negligence							
Manslaughter	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
by							
Negligence							

# Sex Offenses

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Rape	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Forcible	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling							
Forcible	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling							
Forcible	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling							
Incest	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape							
Statutory	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape							
Statutory	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape							

# Robbery

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
	incidents	Campus	raciity	Danaing, Property	rioperty	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# Aggravated Assault

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# Burglary

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **Motor Vehicle Theft**

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# Arson

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

### **VAWA-Domestic Violence**

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **VAWA-Dating Violence**

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **VAWA-Stalking**

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

#### **Hate Crimes**

Murder/Non-Negligent Homicide, Manslaughter by Negligence, Rape, Forcible Fondling, Incest, Statutory Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Motor Vehicle Theft, Arson, Larceny, Intimidation, Vandalism

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Race	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Race	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Race	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Religion	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Religion	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Religion	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sexual	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Orientation							

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Sexual	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Orientation							
Sexual	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Orientation							
Ethnicity	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ethnicity	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ethnicity	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Disability	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Disability	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Disability	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Identity							
Gender	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Identity							
Gender	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Identity							

# Griswold Location at Griswold High School

267 Slate Avenue, Griswold, CT 06351 PO Box 399, Griswold, CT 06351

### Town of Griswold, CT

### Arrest

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Liquor	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Drug Law	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Drug Law	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Illegal	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							

# Judicial Referrals

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Liquor	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Drug Law	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Illegal	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Illegal	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							

## **Criminal Homicide**

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Murder/Non-	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent							
Homicide							
Murder/Non-	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent							
Homicide							
Murder/Non-	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent							
Homicide							
Manslaughter	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
by							
Negligence							
Manslaughter	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
by							
Negligence							
Manslaughter	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
by							
Negligence							

## **Sex Offenses**

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Rape	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Forcible	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling							
Forcible	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling							
Forcible	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling							

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Incest	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape							
Statutory	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape							
Statutory	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape							

# Robbery

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# Aggravated Assault

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# Burglary

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **Motor Vehicle Theft**

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

#### Arson

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

### **VAWA-Domestic Violence**

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **VAWA-Dating Violence**

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

## **VAWA-Stalking**

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

#### **Hate Crimes**

Murder/Non-Negligent Homicide, Manslaughter by Negligence, Rape, Forcible Fondling, Incest, Statutory Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Motor Vehicle Theft, Arson, Larceny, Intimidation, Vandalism

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Race	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Race	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Race	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Religion	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Religion	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Religion	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sexual	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Orientation							
Sexual	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Orientation							
Sexual	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Orientation							
Ethnicity	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ethnicity	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ethnicity	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Disability	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Disability	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Disability	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Identity							
Gender	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Identity							
Gender	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Identity							
National	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Origin							
National	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Origin							
National	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Origin							

# SHU Dingle Campus

The Mall Dingle, Ireland

### **Sacred Heart University Dingle Campus**

#### Arrest

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Liquor	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Drug Law	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Illegal	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							

## **Judicial Referrals**

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Liquor	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Liquor	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Liquor	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Law							
Violations							
Drug Law	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Drug Law	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Violations							
Illegal	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							
Illegal	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Weapon							
Violations							

# **Criminal Homicide**

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Murder/Non-	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent							
Homicide							
Murder/Non-	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent							
Homicide							
Murder/Non-	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent							
Homicide							
Manslaughter	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
by							
Negligence							
Manslaughter	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
by							
Negligence							

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Manslaughter	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
by							
Negligence							

# **Sex Offenses**

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Rape	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Forcible	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling							
Forcible	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling							
Forcible	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling							
Incest	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape							
Statutory	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape							
Statutory	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape		_					

# Robbery

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# Aggravated Assault

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# Burglary

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

## **Motor Vehicle Theft**

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

### Arson

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

## **VAWA-Domestic Violence**

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# VAWA-Dating Violence

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0

Year	# of Incidents	On Campus	Residential Facility	Non-Campus Building/Property	Public Property	Unfounded
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **VAWA-Stalking**

Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
	Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

### **Hate Crimes**

Murder/Non-Negligent Homicide, Manslaughter by Negligence, Rape, Forcible Fondling, Incest, Statutory Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Motor Vehicle Theft, Arson, Larceny, Intimidation, Vandalism

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	Building/Property	Property	
Race	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Race	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Race	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gender	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Religion	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Religion	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Religion	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sexual	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Orientation							
Sexual	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Orientation							
Sexual	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Orientation							
Ethnicity	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ethnicity	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ethnicity	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Disability	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Disability	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Disability	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0

Type of	Year	# of	On	Residential	Non-Campus	Public	Unfounded
Offense		Incidents	Campus	Facility	<b>Building/Property</b>	Property	
Gender	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Identity							
Gender	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Identity							
Gender	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Identity							
National	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
Origin							
National	2023	0	0	0	0	0	0
Origin							
National	2024	0	0	0	0	0	0
Origin							

### **Campus Fire Safety Procedure & Reporting**

In Compliance with Campus Fire Safety Right to Know Act HEA Title IV, Part G, Section 488 (i) (1) (Public Law 110-315) The Campus Fire Safety Right-to-Know Act requires colleges and universities that maintain on-campus student housing to annually publish a fire safety report, which shall contain information with respect to the campus fire safety practices and standards for those institutions. Public Safety maintains a fire incident log at the dispatch office in the main academic building, which is available for review.

The act requires the annual report to contain the following information:

- The number of fires and the cause of each fire.
- The number of injuries and deaths related to a fire.
- The value of property damage caused by a fire.
- The number of regular mandatory supervised fire drills.
- The description of the fire protection equipment (alarms/sprinklers) in each on-campus housing unit.
- Policies, rules and regulations on portable electric appliances, smoking, open flames (i.e. candles, incense) evacuation procedures.
- Policies regarding fire safety education and training programs provided to students, faculty, and staff
- Plans for future improvements in fire safety, if determined necessary by such institution.

The Sacred Heart University Department of Public Safety is responsible for compiling the information contained within and distributing the report. SHU DPS works with Residential Life and Campus Operations along with municipal fire officials to compile this information.

### 2022 Residential Hall Fires

Incident #	Date/Time	Location	Description
2203-00317	March 21, 2022 at 0240	Thea Bowman	Fire ignited inside of a
	Hours	Hall/Thea's Abbey	laundry cart in the loading
			dock for the building.
			Fairfield Fire responded to
			the incident and
			extinguished the fire. No
			injuries or deaths resulted.
			Fairfield Fire Marshal's
			Office and Public Safety
			investigated and could not
			determine a cause of the
			fire. Estimated damage to
			the linens and cart was
			under \$5,000.

### 2023 Residential Hall Fires

Incident #	Date/Time	Location	Description
No fires occurred in Residential Halls on	N/A	N/A	N/A
campus.			

### 2024 Residential Hall Fires

Incident #	Date/Time	Location	Description
No fires occurred in Residential Halls on	N/A	N/A	N/A
campus.			

## 2022 Residential Fire Drills Conducted

Residential Hall	Date	Time	Results/Concerns/Issues
			Found
Augustine Hall	April 20,	2047-2058	Residents failed to
	2022	Hours	evacuate the building.

Residential Hall	Date	Time	Results/Concerns/Issues
			Found
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			office.
Aquinas Hall	April 20,	2047-2058	Residents failed to
	2022	Hours	evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			office.
Avila Hall	April 20,	2047-2058	Residents failed to
	2022	Hours	evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			office.
Newman Hall	April 20,	2047-2058	Residents failed to
	2022	Hours	evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			office.
Thomas Merton Hall	April 20,	2246-2258	Residents failed to
	2022	Hours	evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			office.
Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall	April 20,	1716-1727	Residents failed to
	2022	Hours	evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			office.
The Ridge Apartments	April 20,	2015-2029	Buildings were
	2022	Hours	evacuated without issue
Christian Witness Commons (Donovan	April 20,	1850-1902	Candles were found in
Hall, Romero Hall, Day Hall)	2022	Hours	suites. Residents failed
			to evacuate the
			buildings. They were
			referred to the Student
	1		Conduct office.
Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall	April 20,	2213-2227	Residents failed to
	2022	Hours	evacuate the building.
			They were referred to

Residential Hall	Date	Time	Results/Concerns/Issues Found
			the Student Conduct
			office.
Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall	April 20,	2213-2227	Residents failed to
	2022	Hours	evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			office.
Elie Wiesel Hall	April 20,	2115-2130	Building was evacuated
	2022	Hours	without issue.
Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall	April 20,	2115-2130	Building was evacuated
	2022	Hours	without issue.
Pierre Toussaint Hall	April 20,	2157-2207	Building was evacuated
	2022	Hours	without issue.
Thea Bowman Hall	April 20,	1635-1650	Residents failed to
	2022	Hours	evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			office.
Jorge Bergoglio Hall	April 20,	1750-1803	Residents failed to
	2022	Hours	evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			office.
Angelo Roncalli Hall	April 20,	1936-1953	Residents failed to
	2022	Hours	evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			office.
Oakwood Apartments (North, South,	April 20,	1830-1844	Buildings were
East & West)	2022	Hours	evacuated without issue
Pioneer Gardens	April 20,	1817-1829	Residents failed to
	2022	Hours	evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			office.
Augustine Hall	November	1330-1525	Building was evacuated
	8, 2022	Hours	without issue.
Aquinas Hall	November	1330-1525	Building was evacuated
	8, 2022	Hours	without issue

Residential Hall	Date	Time	Results/Concerns/Issues
			Found
Avila Hall	November	1330-1525	Building was evacuated
	8, 2022	Hours	without issue
Newman Hall	November	1330-1525	Building was evacuated
	8, 2022	Hours	without issue
Thomas Merton Hall	November	1330-1525	Building was evacuated
	8, 2022	Hours	without issue
Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall	November	1330-1525	Building was evacuated
	8, 2022	Hours	without issue
The Ridge Apartments	November	Time	Buildings were
	2022	Unspecified	evacuated without issue.
Christian Witness Commons	November	Time	Buildings were
- Jean Donovan Hall	2022	Unspecified	evacuated without issue.
- Oscar Romero Hall			
- Day Hall			
Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall	November	Time	Building was evacuated
	2022	Unspecified	without issue.
Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall	November	Time	Building was evacuated
	2022	Unspecified	without issue.
Elie Wiesel Hall	November	Time	Building was evacuated
	2022	Unspecified	without issue.
Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall	November	Time	Building was evacuated
	2022	Unspecified	without issue.
Pierre Toussaint Hall	November	1330-1525	Building was evacuated
	8, 2022	Hours	without issue.
Thea Bowman Hall	November	1330-1525	Building was evacuated
	17, 2022	Hours	without issue.
Jorge Bergoglio Hall	November	1330-1525	Building was evacuated
	8, 2022	Hours	without issue.
Angelo Roncalli Hall	November	Time	Building was evacuated
	2022	Unspecified	without issue.
Oakwood Apartments	November	Time	Buildings were
- North	2022	Unspecified	evacuated without issue.
- South			
- East			
- West			
Pioneer Gardens	November	Time	Buildings were
	2022	Unspecified	evacuated without issue.

# 2023 Residential Fire Drills Conducted

Residential Hall	Date	Time	Results/Concerns/Issues
			Found
Augustine Hall	April 19,	1030-1215	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Thomas Aquinas Hall	April 19,	1030-1215	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Teresa of Avila Hall	April 19,	1030-1215	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
John Henry Newman Hall	April 19,	1030-1215	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Thomas Merton Hall	April 20,	1428-1500	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall	April 25,	1400-1412	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
The Ridge Apartments	Spring 2023	Not	Buildings were
		specified	evacuated without issue.
Christian Witness Commons	April 20,	1345-1410	Buildings were
- Jean Donovan Hall	2023	Hours	evacuated without issue.
- Oscar Romero Hall			
- Dorothy Day Hall			
Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall	April 25,	1330-1400	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall	April 25,	1330-1400	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Elie Wiesel Hall	April 25,	1314-1330	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall	April 25,	1314-1330	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Pierre Toussaint Hall	April 19,	1030-1215	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Thea Bowman Hall	April 26,	0903-0913	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Jorge Bergoglio Hall	April 20,	1410-1428	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Angelo Roncalli Hall	April 19,	1030-1215	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Oakwood Apartments	Spring 2023	Time	Buildings were
- North		Unspecified	evacuated without issue.

- South			
- East			
- West			
Pioneer Gardens	Spring 2023	Time	Buildings were
		Unspecified	evacuated without issue.
Residential Hall	Date	Time	Results/Concerns/Issues
			Found
Augustine Hall	October 17,	1710-1716	Three (3) Residents
	2023	Hours	failed to evacuate the
			building. They were
			referred to the Student
			Conduct Office.
Thomas Aquinas Hall	October 17,	1722-1732	Nine (9) Residents failed
	2023	Hours	to evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			Office.
Teresa of Avila Hall	October 17,	1742-1750	One Resident failed to
	2023	Hours	evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			Office.
John Henry Newman Hall	October 17,	1753-1801	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
Thomas Merton Hall	October 16,	1731-1744	One (1) Resident failed
	2023	Hours	to evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			Office.
Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall	October 16,	1823-1838	Building was evacuated
	2023	Hours	without issue.
The Ridge Apartments	October	Time	Buildings were
	2023	Unspecified	evacuated without issue.
Christian Witness Commons	October 24,	1828-1850	Buildings were
- Jean Donovan Hall	2023	Hours	evacuated without issue.
- Oscar Romero Hall			
- Dorothy Day Hall			
Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall	October 17,	1825-1836	Three (3) Residents
	2023	Hours	failed to evacuate the
			building. They were

Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  October 17, 1838-1845  Hours  One (1) Resident failed to evacuate the buildin They were referred to the Student Conduct Office.  Elie Wiesel Hall  October 17, 1943-1954  Building was evacuated without issue.  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  October 17, 1943-1953  Building was evacuated without issue.	
2023 Hours to evacuate the buildin They were referred to the Student Conduct Office.  Elie Wiesel Hall October 17, 1943-1954 Building was evacuated without issue.	
They were referred to the Student Conduct Office.  Elie Wiesel Hall October 17, 1943-1954 Building was evacuated without issue.	
the Student Conduct Office.  Elie Wiesel Hall October 17, 1943-1954 Building was evacuated without issue.	g.
Elie Wiesel Hall October 17, 1943-1954 Building was evacuated without issue.	
Elie Wiesel Hall October 17, 1943-1954 Building was evacuated without issue.	
2023 Hours without issue.	
	t
Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall October 17 1943-1953 Building was evacuated	
Danaing was evacuated	t
2023 Hours without issue.	
Pierre Toussaint Hall October 17, 1707-1716 Building was evacuated	t
2023 Hours without issue.	
Thea Bowman Hall October 17, 2002-2009 Building was evacuated	t
2023 Hours without issue.	
Jorge Bergoglio HallOctober 16,1758-1809Building was evacuated	t
2023 Hours without issue.	
Angelo Roncalli Hall October 24, 1742-1801 Six (6) Residents failed	to
2023 Hours evacuate the building.	
They were referred to	
the Student Conduct	
Office.	
Oakwood Apartments October 24, 1938-2000 Buildings were	
- North 2023 Hours evacuated without issu	ıe.
- South	
- East	
- West	
Pioneer Gardens November 1626-1633 Buildings were	
30, 2023 Hours evacuated without issu	ie.
West Campus Guest House November 1745-1754 Building was evacuated	t
30, 2023 Hours without issue.	

# 2024 Residential Fire Drills Conducted

Residential Hall	Date	Time	Results/Concerns/Issues
			Found
Augustine Hall	April 9, 2024	1637-1646	Building was evacuated
		Hours	without issue.

Thomas Aquinas Hall	April 9, 2024	1637-1646 Hours	Building was evacuated without issue.
Teresa of Avila Hall	April 9, 2024	1637-1646 Hours	Building was evacuated without issue.
John Henry Newman Hall	April 9, 2024	1637-1646 Hours	Building was evacuated without issue.
Thomas Merton Hall	April 8, 2024	1643-1655 Hours	Building was evacuated without issue.
Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall	April 8, 2024	1643-1655 Hours	Two (2) Residents failed to evacuate the building. They were referred to the Student Conduct Office.
The Ridge Apartments	April 9, 2024	1850-1905 Hours	Buildings were evacuated without issue.
Christian Witness Commons - Jean Donovan Hall - Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall	April 9, 2024	1745-1757 Hours	Four (4) Residents failed to evacuate the building. They were referred to the Student Conduct Office.
Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall	April 9, 2024	1653-1659 Hours	One (1) Resident failed to evacuate the building. They were referred to the Student Conduct Office.
Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall	April 9, 2024	1653-1659 Hours	Building was evacuated without issue.
Elie Wiesel Hall	April 8, 2024	1720-1726 Hours	Building was evacuated without issue.
Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall	April 8, 2024	1720-1726 Hours	Building was evacuated without issue.
Pierre Toussaint Hall	April 8, 2024	1706-1718 Hours	Two (2) Residents failed to evacuate the building. They were referred to the Student Conduct Office.

Thea Bowman Hall	April 8, 2024	1738-1744	Building was evacuated
		Hours	without issue.
Catherine of Siena	Opened	N/A	N/A
	Fall 2024		
Michael McGivney Hall	Opened	N/A	N/A
	Fall 2024		
Jorge Bergoglio Hall	April 8, 2024	1627-1633	Building was evacuated
		Hours	without issue.
Angelo Roncalli Hall	April 9, 2024	1712-1729	Four (4) Residents failed
		Hours	to evacuate the building.
			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			Office.
Oakwood Apartments	April 9, 2024	1815-1825	Buildings were
- North		Hours	evacuated without issue.
- South			
- East			
- West			
Pioneer Gardens	April 9, 2024	1830-1845	Building was evacuated
		Hours	without issue.

Residential Hall	Date	Time	Results/Concerns/Issues
			Found
Augustine Hall	September	1648-1657	Building was evacuated
	19, 2024	Hours	without issue.
Thomas Aquinas Hall	September	1648-1657	Three (3) Residents
	19, 2024	Hours	failed to evacuate the
			building. They were
			referred to the Student
			Conduct Office.
Teresa of Avila Hall	September	1648-1657	Building was evacuated
	19, 2024	Hours	without issue.

Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall  Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall  September 4, 2024  The Ridge Apartments  October 7, 2024  Christian Witness Commons - Jean Donovan Hall - Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  September 5, 2024  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  September 5, 2024  Elie Wiesel Hall  September 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 1, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1, 2024  September 5, 2024  September 1, 2024  September 1, 2024	635-1643  730-1750  Hours  623-1632  Hours  1741-1752  Hours	to evacuate the building. They were referred to the Student Conduct Office. Building was evacuated without issue. Building was evacuated without issue. Buildings were evacuated without issue. Building was evacuated without issue. Building was evacuated without issue.
Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall  Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall  September 4, 2024  The Ridge Apartments  October 7, 2024  Christian Witness Commons - Jean Donovan Hall - Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  September 5, 2024  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  September 5, 2024  Elie Wiesel Hall  September 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 1, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 1, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1, 2024  September 1, 2024  September 1, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1, 2024	635-1643  730-1750  Hours  623-1632  Hours  1741-1752  Hours	the Student Conduct Office.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.
Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall  Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall  September 4, 2024  The Ridge Apartments  October 7, 2024  Christian Witness Commons - Jean Donovan Hall - Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  September 5, 2024  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  September 1, 2024  Elie Wiesel Hall  September 1, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 1, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 1, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1, 2024  September 1, 2024  September 2, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 3, 2024	635-1643  730-1750  Hours  623-1632  Hours  1741-1752  Hours	Office.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.
Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall  Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall  September 4, 2024  The Ridge Apartments  October 7, 2024  Christian Witness Commons - Jean Donovan Hall - Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  September 5, 2024  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  September 5, 2024  Elie Wiesel Hall  September 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 1, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1, 2024  September 5, 2024  September 1, 2024  September 1, 2024	635-1643  730-1750  Hours  623-1632  Hours  1741-1752  Hours	Building was evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated
Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall  Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall  September 4, 2024  The Ridge Apartments  October 7, 2024  Christian Witness Commons - Jean Donovan Hall - Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  September 5, 2024  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  September 5, 2024  Elie Wiesel Hall  September 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 1, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1, 2024  September 5, 2024  September 1, 2024  September 1, 2024	635-1643  730-1750  Hours  623-1632  Hours  1741-1752  Hours	without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated
Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall  Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall  September 4, 2024  The Ridge Apartments  October 7, 2024  Christian Witness Commons - Jean Donovan Hall - Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  September 5, 2024  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  September 1, 2024  Elie Wiesel Hall  September 1, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 1, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 1, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1, 2024  September 1, 2024  September 1, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1, 2024	635-1643  730-1750  Hours  623-1632  Hours  1741-1752  Hours  741-1752	Building was evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.
The Ridge Apartments  October 7, 2024  Christian Witness Commons - Jean Donovan Hall - Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  September 5, 2024  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  September 5, 2024  Elie Wiesel Hall  September 1 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 1 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 1 5, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1 5, 2024	730-1750 Hours 623-1632 Hours 1741-1752 Hours	without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated
The Ridge Apartments  October 7, 2024  Christian Witness Commons - Jean Donovan Hall 24, 2024 - Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  September 5, 2024  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  September 5, 2024  Elie Wiesel Hall  September 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 1, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 1, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1, 2024  September 1, 2024  September 1, 2024  September 1, 2024	730-1750 Hours 623-1632 Hours 1741-1752 Hours	Buildings were evacuated without issue. Buildings were evacuated without issue. Building was evacuated without issue. Building was evacuated
Christian Witness Commons - Jean Donovan Hall - Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  Elie Wiesel Hall  Pierr Giorgio Frassati Hall  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 5, 2024  September 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 5, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 5, 2024	Hours 623-1632 Hours 1741-1752 Hours 741-1752	evacuated without issue.  Buildings were evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated
Christian Witness Commons - Jean Donovan Hall - Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  Elie Wiesel Hall  Pierr Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 5, 2024  September 5, 2024  September 5, 2024  September 4, 2024  September 5, 2024	623-1632 Hours 1741-1752 Hours 741-1752	Buildings were evacuated without issue. Building was evacuated without issue. Building was evacuated
- Jean Donovan Hall - Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  Elie Wiesel Hall  September 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 1  September 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1  September 5, 2024	Hours 1741-1752 Hours 741-1752	evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated without issue.  Building was evacuated
- Oscar Romero Hall - Dorothy Day Hall  Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  Elie Wiesel Hall  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 5, 2024  September 5, 2024  September 5, 2024  September 5, 2024	741-1752 Hours 741-1752	Building was evacuated without issue. Building was evacuated
- Dorothy Day Hall Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall September 5, 2024  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall September 5, 2024  Elie Wiesel Hall September 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall September 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall September 5, 2024	Hours 741-1752	without issue. Building was evacuated
Frances Xavier Cabrini Hall  September 5, 2024  Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  Elie Wiesel Hall  September 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 5, 2024  September 4, 2024  September 1  September 5, 2024	Hours 741-1752	without issue. Building was evacuated
Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  September 5, 2024  Elie Wiesel Hall  September 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1  September 5, 2024  September 1  September 1  September 5, 2024	Hours 741-1752	without issue. Building was evacuated
Mother Teresa of Calcutta Hall  September 5, 2024  Elie Wiesel Hall  September 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 5, 2024  September 1  September 1  5, 2024	741-1752	Building was evacuated
Elie Wiesel Hall  September 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 1  September 4, 2024  September 1  September 5, 2024		•
Elie Wiesel Hall  September 5, 2024  Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 5, 2024	Hours	without issue.
Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall  September 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall  September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall  September 5, 2024		
Pier Giorgio Frassati Hall September 5, 2024  Pierre Toussaint Hall September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall September 5, 2024	716-1726	Building was evacuated
Pierre Toussaint Hall September 4, 2024  Thea Bowman Hall September 5, 2024	Hours	without issue.
Pierre Toussaint Hall September 4, 2024 Thea Bowman Hall September 5, 2024	716-1727	Building was evacuated
Thea Bowman Hall  September 5, 2024	Hours	without issue.
Thea Bowman Hall September 1 5, 2024	716-1723	Building was evacuated
5, 2024	Hours	without issue.
	730-1736	Building was evacuated
Catharina of Ciana Cantarahan 1	Hours	without issue.
Catherine of Siena September 1	625-1634	Building was evacuated
4, 2024	Hours	without issue.
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	J	Building was evacuated
4, 2024		without issue.
Jorge Bergoglio Hall September 1		
4, 2024	Hours	Building was evacuated
Angelo Roncalli Hall September 1	Hours 734-1744	Building was evacuated without issue.
24, 2024	Hours 734-1744	

			They were referred to
			the Student Conduct
			Office.
Oakwood Apartments	October 7,	1646-1707	Buildings were
- North	2024	Hours	evacuated without issue.
- South			
- East			
- West			
Pioneer Gardens	October 7,	1619-1626	Building was evacuated
	2024	Hours	without issue.

# Fire Protection Equipment in Residential Halls

## Jorge Bergoglio Hall

Park Avenue Campus, 5151 Park Avenue Fairfield

Bergoglio Hall is equipped with fire detection equipment and has a building-wide sprinkler system. The fire alarm system consists of smoke detectors, heat detectors, and pull stations. Fire evacuation system consists of strobes, horns, and a voice evacuation notification. Alarms are transmitted to the Department of Public Safety via fire panel. Public Safety Officers respond to all fire alarms and will notify the Fairfield Fire Department when necessary. Fire extinguishers are present in key locations.

#### Pierre Toussaint Hall

Park Avenue Campus, 5151 Park Avenue Fairfield

Toussaint Hall is equipped with fire detection equipment and has a building-wide sprinkler system. The fire alarm system consists of smoke detectors, heat detectors, and pull stations. Fire evacuation system consists of strobes, horns, and a voice evacuation notification. Alarms are transmitted to the Department of Public Safety via fire panel. Public Safety Officers respond to all fire alarms and will notify the Fairfield Fire Department when necessary. Fire extinguishers are present in key locations.

#### Elizabeth Ann Seton Hall

Park Avenue Campus, 5151 Park Avenue Fairfield

Seton Hall is equipped with fire detection equipment and has a building-wide sprinkler system. The fire alarm system consists of smoke detectors, heat detectors, and pull stations. Fire evacuation system consists of strobes, horns, and a voice evacuation notification. Alarms are transmitted to the Department of Public Safety via fire panel. Public Safety Officers respond to all fire alarms and will notify the Fairfield Fire Department when necessary. Fire extinguishers are present in kitchens.

#### **Thomas Merton Hall**

Park Avenue Campus, 5151 Park Avenue Fairfield

Merton Hall is equipped with fire detection equipment and has a building-wide sprinkler system. The fire alarm system consists of smoke detectors, heat detectors, and pull stations. Fire evacuation system consists of strobes, horns, and a voice evacuation notification. Alarms are transmitted to the Department of Public Safety via fire panel. Public Safety Officers respond to all fire alarms and will notify the Fairfield Fire Department when necessary. Fire extinguishers are present in kitchens.

#### **Scholars Commons**

Park Avenue Campus, 5151 Park Avenue Fairfield

The residential complex consists of 4 buildings - Augustine Hall, Thomas Aquinas Hall, Teresa of Avila Hall and John Henry Newman Hall. They are similar and near exact in design. All four Scholars Commons buildings are equipped with fire detection equipment and have a building-wide sprinkler system. The fire alarm systems consist of smoke detectors, heat detectors, and pull stations. Fire evacuation system consists of strobes and horns. Alarms are transmitted to both the Department of Public Safety and to a central off-campus monitoring company via fire panel. Public Safety Officers respond to all fire alarms. Fire extinguishers are present in each room as well as in hallways and laundry rooms.

# Angelo Roncalli Hall

Park Avenue Campus, 4940 Park Avenue Bridgeport

Roncalli Hall is a 10-story residential hall equipped with fire detection equipment and has a building-wide sprinkler system. The fire alarm systems consist of smoke detectors, heat detectors, and pull stations. Fire evacuation system consists of strobes, horns, and a voice evacuation notification. An Officer is posted 24/7 at the front lobby desk. Public Safety Officers respond to all fire alarms. Alarms are transmitted to both the Department of Public Safety and to a central off-campus monitoring company via fire panel. The monitoring company automatically contacts the Bridgeport Fire Department to respond to all fire alarms, in addition to SHU Public Safety. Fire extinguishers are present next to laundry rooms and in elevator lobbies.

## **Christian Witness Commons**

Park Avenue Campus, Bridgeport

- Jean Donovan Hall, 5252 Park Avenue
- Oscar Romero Hall, 5249 Park Avenue
- Dorothy Day Hall, 5232 Park Avenue

The Christian Witness Commons residential complex consists of 3 buildings: Jean Donovan Hall, Oscar Romero Hall and Dorothy Day Hall. They are similar and near exact in design. All three buildings are equipped with fire detection equipment and have a building-wide sprinkler system. The fire alarm systems consist of smoke detectors, heat detectors, and pull stations. Fire evacuation system consists of strobes, horns, and a voice evacuation notification. Also, a Security Officer is posted 24/7 in the Romero Hall Public Safety Office. Alarms are transmitted to both the Department of Public Safety and to a central off-campus monitoring company via fire panel. The monitoring company automatically contacts the

Bridgeport Fire Department to respond to all fire alarms, in addition to SHU Public Safety. Fire Extinguishers are present in each suite as well as in common areas.

# The Ridge Apartment/Townhouses

## Bridgeport

- The Ridge Apartments 4314/4324/4336/4348/4360 Park Avenue
- The Ridge Townhouses 279/281/283/285/287/289/291 Geduldig Street

The Ridge residential complex consists of (2) styles of apartments. The Ridge building (1) has 28 ranch style apartments on two levels. The Ridge building (2) is comprised of (7) townhouse style apartments. All apartments have local smoke detectors. There is no direct central fire reporting system. The buildings are equipped with fire sprinkler systems. Public Safety Officers respond to alarms as called in by residents or discovered while on patrol. Depending on the scope of the incident, Bridgeport Fire is notified by SHU Public Safety. Residents have the ability to dial 911 for an immediate response by municipal Fire, Police and EMS agencies. SHU Public Safety provides security coverage from 8PM to 4AM daily. Fire extinguishers are present in each apartment and in Hallways and stairwells.

# **Oakwood Apartments**

## Bridgeport

- North Building 3726-3750 Madison Avenue
- South Building 3730-3740 Madison Avenue
- East Building 3720-3724 Madison Avenue
- West Building 3800-3820 Madison Avenue

The Oakwood residential complex consists of (4) identical buildings containing ranch style apartments and are equipped with local smoke detectors. There is no direct central fire reporting system. Residents have the ability to dial 911 for an immediate response by municipal Fire, Police and EMS agencies. The buildings have fire sprinkler systems.

#### Thea Bowman Hall

Park Avenue Campus 5151 Park Avenue Fairfield

Located in the Pioneer Village, Bowman Hall houses over 125 residential sophomores students. Bowman is also home to the Thea's Abbey Dining Hall. The building is staffed with 4 student Resident Success Assistants and one Residence Hall Director.

#### **Pioneer Gardens**

51 Eckart Street Bridgeport

The Pioneer Gardens residential complex is comprised of two connected buildings. The buildings are equipped with smoke detectors which report to a fire panel near the security office. The building also has sprinklers throughout. The fire alarm systems consist of smoke detectors, heat detectors, and pull stations. Alarms are transmitted via fire panel to both the Department of Public Safety and to a central

off-campus monitoring company. The monitoring company automatically contacts the Bridgeport Fire Department to respond to all fire alarms in addition to SHU Public Safety.

# Elie Wiesel & Pier Giorgio Frassati Halls

Park Avenue Campus, 5151 Park Avenue Fairfield

Elie Wiesel & Pier Giorgio Frassati Halls are an interconnected 4-story residential facility that is equipped with fire detection equipment and has a building-wide sprinkler system. The fire alarm system consists of smoke detectors, heat detectors, and pull stations. Fire evacuation system consists of strobes, horns, and a voice evacuation notification. Alarms are transmitted to the Department of Public Safety via fire panel. Public Safety Officers respond to all fire alarms and will notify the Fairfield Fire Department when necessary.

## Francis X. Cabrini & Mother Theresa of Calcutta Halls

Park Avenue Campus, 5151 Park Avenue Fairfield

Francis X. Cabrini & Mother Theresa of Calcutta Halls are an interconnected 4-story residential facility that is equipped with fire detection equipment and has a building-wide sprinkler system. The fire alarm system consists of smoke detectors, heat detectors, and pull stations. Fire evacuation system consists of strobes, horns, and a voice evacuation notification. Alarms are transmitted to the Department of Public Safety via fire panel. Public Safety Officers respond to all fire alarms and will notify the Fairfield Fire Department when necessary.

# Catherine of Siena & Michael McGivney Halls

Park Avenue Campus, 5151 Park Avenue Fairfield

Francis X. Cabrini & Mother Theresa of Calcutta Halls are an interconnected 4-story residential facility that is equipped with fire detection equipment and has a building-wide sprinkler system. The fire alarm system consists of smoke detectors, heat detectors, duct detectors, and pull stations. Fire evacuation system consists of strobes, horns, and a voice evacuation notification. Alarms are transmitted to the Department of Public Safety via fire panel. Public Safety Officers respond to all fire alarms and will notify the Fairfield Fire Department when necessary.

Fire / Evacuation drills are held at least once per semester in all residential facilities.

# **Fire Safety Training**

The Department of Public Safety trains and reviews procedures with the Residential Life and Campus Operations staff yearly. Residential Hall Directors and Residential Success Assistants (RHDs & RSAs) are trained on proper procedures for building evacuation, fire extinguisher use and fire prevention.

# Fire Extinguishers

The Department of Public Safety is responsible for maintaining fire extinguishers in all University buildings on campus. A certified private vendor under contract is utilized to annually inspect and certify all fire extinguishers, recharging and/or replacing units as required by NFPA 10.

# Fire Watch Procedure (Alarm failure or interruption of water flow to facilities)

In the event that the alarm system is not working due to system failure, a fire watch will be conducted in accordance with State and Local regulations. The Department of Public Safety will notify the local authority having jurisdiction (AHJ) regarding any University building in which the fire system is out of order and that a fire watch has been activated. The local AHJ has the statutory authority to determine what resources are needed for the duration of an outage where a University facility is temporarily without an active alarm or fire suppression capabilities. Malicious/False Activations of Fire Alarms and Tampering with Fire Safety Equipment any person found activating fire alarms or tampering with fire safety equipment when there is no fire or emergency, shall be subject to punishment by both the University Judicial process as well as local and state authorities. The Sacred Heart University Department of Public Safety considers any violations of fire safety to be serious.

Anyone found to be in violation of any fire safety regulation will be subject to arrest for violating applicable Connecticut criminal statutes and prosecution, along with administrative sanctions from the University in accordance with the SHU Student Handbook. For further details on the University's Conduct Code and Judicial System see the Student Handbook.

# Fire Alarm Activation & Evacuation Procedures

An evacuation may be required any time a condition exists which has been deemed an emergency or potentially hazardous by the Department of Public Safety or University Officials. Therefore, when the fire alarm sounds, persons must respond immediately.

If the alarm sounds or an announcement is made, all persons must exit and proceed to nearest exit. The usual indication for evacuation will be the sounding of the fire alarm horn and the flashing strobe lights. Evacuation procedures will commence immediately at the sound of the alarm.

# Assist people with disabilities to a rescue stairwell area

- Remember, elevators are reserved for use by the handicapped.
- Report any missing person or person who needs special assistance to a public safety officer immediately upon exiting the building.
- Personal Items: When evacuating the building, please take personal belongings with you that are immediately at hand.

# It is important that you do not delay leaving your location.

- There may be other emergency situations that call for evacuation without the sounding of an alarm; in such a case, Public Safety Officers and/or University officials will respond and notify building occupants of the need to evacuate.
- The fire department shall be responsible for evacuating all persons with disabilities from the building unless prior special arrangements have been made with the individual.

Follow any instructions given by SHU Public Safety, Municipal Police or Fire Personnel.

# Residence Life Fire Safety Regulations

(Portions from the SHU Student Handbook)

### Appliances/cooking

All appliances must be UL listed. In Merton, Seton, and Roncalli Halls, cooking is not permitted in residence rooms; kitchenettes are provided on each floor. Do not leave appliances unattended while cooking.

Appliances prohibited in Merton, Seton, and Roncalli Halls include hot plates, toaster ovens, electric frying pans, heating coils, electric blankets (unless medically required), microwave ovens and refrigerators (except as provided by the University), and free-standing halogen floor lamps.

# Ceilings/wall coverings

Nothing may be hung from or affixed to the ceiling, or on any fire safety device such as a smoke or heat detector or sprinkler pipe or head. This includes decorations, lights, flags banners, or posters.

All objects placed on the wall must be at least six inches below the ceiling line. Any draperies or tapestries in rooms must be flame resistant and labeled as such by the NFPA (701).

There must be at least eighty percent of available wall space (subtracting doors and other openings) in resident rooms and hallways.

#### Confiscation

Residence Life and Public Safety staff is authorized to confiscate prohibited items that are considered a fire hazard. Items not permitted include, but are not limited to, specific appliances (see above), incense, candles, explosives, and fireworks of any kind. Confiscated items will be turned over to SHU Public Safety and/or the police. Residence Life staff, the Dean of Students, and the students involved are informed of all confiscations in accordance with disciplinary provisions of the Student Handbook. Confiscated items are not returned to students.

#### **Egress**

All hallways and stairwells must be kept clear and allow for egress at all times; property may not be stored in these areas. Any items found in these areas will be confiscated. (Any furniture which is moved into a hallway from a room will be billed as lost furniture to the residents of that room.)

#### Extension cords

Extension cords are not permitted. Only authorized UL listed surge protectors with built-in circuit breakers are allowed. Surge protectors must not be plugged into each other, hung from the ceiling, laid over or under a rug, or have exposed wires. Only one surge protector may be used per outlet.

#### Evacuation

All building occupants must evacuate immediately in an orderly manner whenever the building fire alarm sounds. Failure to promptly evacuate the building is cause for disciplinary action.

#### Fire Doors

Hallway, stairwell, and residence room doors are considered fire doors and, as such, must be kept closed and unobstructed at all times; the exception are the magnetically controlled hallway doors in Merton, Seton, and Roncalli Halls.

#### Fire Drills

Fire drills are conducted in all residence facilities. As with any building fire alarm, it is imperative that all occupants evacuate the building immediately. Failure to do so will result in disciplinary action.

#### **Fireworks**

As a violation of Connecticut State Law, the possession or use of all types of fireworks are strictly prohibited.

#### Fuel

Any fuel, including but not limited to, kerosene, propane, gasoline, and charcoal lighter fluid is strictly prohibited in any University residence hall or apartment.

#### **Holiday Decorations**

Natural trees and wreaths, because they are highly combustible, are prohibited. All holiday lighting must be UL listed and lighting strings may not be plugged in to each other. Each lighting string must be plugged in to a separate outlet. Holiday decorations which are considered excessive, and a potential fire hazard are prohibited. (See Residential Life or Public Safety for specific information on approved, fire retardant/flame resistant decorations.)

#### Open Flame Devices

The possession or use of any open flame devices, such as candles, incense and oil burning lamps is prohibited.

#### Smoking

State law prohibits smoking, including E-cigs in any building on campus.

# Fire Safety & Guidelines- What to do! ...... If There Is a Fire

#### Sound the Alarm

If you discover or suspect a fire, sound the building alarm by activating the nearest pull station. If the building is not equipped with a fire alarm system, warn the other occupants by knocking on doors and shouting a warning as you leave.

(Knock on doors as you exit only). Call x7911 or Public Safety (203-371-7911) immediately.

## Leave the Building

Go to the building's Evacuation Assembly Point (EAP). An EAP has been determined for all campus buildings. Determine who is missing or unaccounted for. Try to help others only if you can do so safely. After exiting the building, remain at least 100 feet away from it. Do not go back into the building until a representative of the Department of Public Safety or Fire Department Indicates it is safe to do so.

#### To Survive a Building Fire

Crawl to an exit door or window if there is smoke. If you get caught in smoke, get down on the floor and crawl on your hands and knees. Cleaner, cooler air will be near the floor.

#### **Feel Doors Before Opening**

Before opening any doors, feel the metal knob. If it is HOT, don't open the door. If it is cool, brace yourself against the door, open it slightly, and if heat or heavy smoke is present, do not enter and immediately close the door.

## Go to the nearest exit or stairway

If the nearest building exit is blocked by fire, heat, or smoke, go to another exit. Do not use elevators. Elevator shafts may fill with smoke, or the power may fail, leaving you trapped. Most elevators have features that deactivate the elevator during an alarm. Standing and waiting for an elevator wastes valuable time. Stairway fire doors will keep out fire and smoke-if they are closed-and will protect you until you get outside. Close as many doors as possible as you leave, this helps to confine the fire.

#### If you get trapped, keep the doors closed

If you are trapped in a room, open the windows from the top to let out the heat and smoke and from the bottom to let in fresh air. If the window only opens from the bottom, open the window, and stay on the floor, away from the window. Seal cracks and vents so smoke cannot enter the room. Signal for help. Hang an object out the window (bed sheet, jacket, etc.) to attract attention. If there is a phone in the room, call for help dialing x7911 or Public Safety at 203-371-7911 and report you are trapped. Be sure to give your room number and location. Do not jump from the room. The fire department will make any rescue attempts. If your clothing is on fire, stop, drop and roll. If your clothes catch on fire, Stop, Drop, and Roll, wherever you are. Rolling smothers the fire. If you are burned, contact the Department of Public Safety immediately and they will respond to provide medical treatment.

For additional Fire and Safety tips, contact our municipal emergency services partners at the web links below:

Sacred Heart's Three Municipal Police and Fire Emergency Services Partners:

# Fairfield, CT – Main Campus; Residential, Academic and Administrative Facilities

- Fairfield Police Department
- Fairfield Fire Department

#### Bridgeport, CT - Adjacent or Near Main Campus; Residential and Academic Facilities

- Bridgeport Police
- Bridgeport Fire

## Trumbull, CT – Near Main Campus; Academic and Administrative Facilities

- Trumbull Police Department
- Trumbull Center Fire Department

# Fire Safety Compliance

Sacred Heart's Fire & Evacuation Planning has been developed to meet the needs of the University in case of an emergency evacuation situation. It is designed to comply with:

- National Fire Protection Association: Life Safety Code —- NFPA 101
- Occupational Safety and Health Administration: Employee Emergency Plans and Fire Prevention Plans — CFR 1910. 38C (2); 38E
- Connecticut General Statutes: Fire Officer Authority CGS 7-313e

# Important University Public Safety Phone Numbers

- Emergency: 203-371-7911
- Routine Business or Non-emergency: 203-371-7995
- Fax: 203-371-7989
- SHU Info Line: 203-365-7669
- Roncalli Hall Lobby Desk: 203-416-3424
- Christian Witness Commons Public Safety Office: 203-396-6502
- Martire Center Lobby Desk: 203-396-8419
- Center for Health Education (CHE) Public Safety Office: 203-416-3538
- West Campus Gatehouse: 203-396-6700